
1 
 

                                

                           

 

 

WRIGHTWOOD 

COMMUNITY  

SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

APRIL 8, 2019 

SPECIAL 

BOARD MEETING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

                       

        WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
                                P.O. Box 218 Wrightwood, CA  92397   

  
                                 Notice   

   
Special Meeting of the Board of Directors   

Monday April 8, 2019-6:30 pm   

Wrightwood Community Building   

1275 State Highway 2, Wrightwood, CA   
 

                                      Agenda   
   

        6:30 PM ï Call to Order   

1. Pledge of Allegiance   

2. Roll Call 

3. Agenda Approval 

4. Public Comments: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any 

request for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including 

auxiliary aids or services, that is sought to participate in the above-agenized 

public meeting, should be directed to the Chair at any time prior to the meeting. 

Under this item, any member of the public wishing to directly address the Board 

on any item of interest that is not within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 

Board may do so now.  However, the Board is prohibited by law from taking any 

action on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 

authorized by the Brown Act.  Any member of the public wishing to directly 

address the Board on any item listed on the agenda may do so when the item is 

being considered by the Board.  Pursuant to Section 2.3.2 of Ordinance No 2017-

1 adopted by the Board on July 1, 2017, the Chair may limit each speaker to a 

comment period of three (3) minutes or less.   
5. Agency Reports 

6. Consent Calendar 

        6a. March 5, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

        6b. Sunshine Ordinance Resolution 2019-03 

7. General Managers Report 

8. March Financials 

9. Lions Club Co-Sponsorship: Discussion and Possible Action 

10. Surplus OF Tables and Chairs: Discussion and Possible Action 

11. Bookkeeper Contract Renewal: Discussion and Possible Action 

12. Resolution 2019-04 & 2019-05 Prop 68 State Park Grant: Discussion 

and Possible Action 

13. Solid Waste Commercial Mandatory Pick Up/Recycling: Discussion 

and Possible Action 

14. District Reserve Policy Resolution 2019-01: Discussion and Possible 

Action  

15. Park and Recreation Event Coordinator Contractor: Discussion and 

Possible Action 

16. Capital Improvement Plan: Discussion and Possible Action 

17. 2019/20 Budget Review: Discussion and Possible Action 

18. Future Board Meeting: Discussion and Possible Action May 7,2019 

19. Directors Comments 

20. Adjournment 

 

 

 

Wrightwood Community          

Services District  

 

THE V ISION 
To Empower our community 

to have local control by 

serving as a platform for 

community discussion, 

cohesion and action in the 

areas of parks and recreation, 

street lighting, solid waste and 

recycling and wastewater 

planning and engineering. 

To promote and grow a 

vibrant parks and recreation 

department for our 

community. 

To maintain and enhance our 

current infrastructure 

To economize our solid waste 

process and maximize our 

efficiency in executing them 

To protect our natural 

resources through evaluating 

community wastewater needs 

To meet all these ends in a 

fiscally responsible manner 

 

 Wrightwood Community 

Services District  

 

THE MISSION 
to provide local governance in 

the areas of parks and 

recreation, street lighting, 

solid waste and recycling and 

waste water planning and 

engineering in a fiscally 

responsible manner. 



3 
 

        

           ITEM 6A 

 

        REGULAR 

     BOARD MEETING     

        March 5, 2019 

 

             MINUTES 
    

     

        

 
    

 
 

 

 



4 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

March 5, 2019 

Wrightwood Community Building  

1275 State Highway 2  

Wrightwood, CA  
  
                                                                                      MINUTES  
  
     Board Members Present:  Wes Zuber, President  

 Leo Hordyk, Vice President         

        Natalie Lopiccolo, Member  

   Michelle Schneider, Member  

    Chuck Franklin, Member  
  

Staff Present:                                   Steven Kennedy, Attorney  

Al Morrissette ï General Manager   

Tamie Keen - Secretary 
       

Call to Order  

President Zuber called the Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   

Al Morrisette conducted the Pledge of Allegiance  
  

Roll Call  

          All members were present  
  

3. Approval of Agenda: President Zuber motioned to approve the agenda with the exception that item 11 be 

moved to right after agency reports.  Director Lopiccolo 2nd the motion.  Agenda approved unanimously. 
  

4. Public Comment:  
  

During regular public comment period, several residence voiced their concern regarding Item 11 ñThe Wind 

Energy Projectò. Comments included statements such as, ñitôs bad for the birds, noisy, ugly and would 

destroy the ambiance of Wrightwood and have no direct benefit for Wrightwood.ò  This comment period 

continued after the agency reports. 

  

5. Agency Reports:  
 

Captain Herbert from Victorville Station announced his replacement, a 21 year veteran, Shelley Kresby will 

begin her duties as Captain on March 30, 2019.  Carl Higley from Wrightwood Fire Station stated they are 

working with Mt. High and CHP to help with snow player congestion and add a 2nd ambulance for the 

weekends. Sgt. Robert Vaccarri stated there were over 100 extra calls due to the snow players.  Jim Cowen 

with Golden State Water gave an update on the pipe-line project to relocate water lines south of Lone Pine 

to prepare for the Sheep Creek Canyon Bridge.  Work to begin late April or first week in May.  LPC could 

possibly be closed for several months while project is being completed. 
  

11. District Support Letter for Alternative Energy Project: Though Director Lopiccolo does not have a direct 

affiliation or involvement with One Town, based upon the possible perception that she is involved she 

recused herself from the discussion and left the room. President Zuber allowed several community 

comments to be included in the discussion involving a letter of support for alternative energy that could be 

built upon a ridge near Mtn High East within the Angeles National Forest. Several community members 

voice their concern of specifics within the draft letter provided by the applicant. Though a representative of 

One Town provided some photographs of similar projects and attempted to explain how the alternative 

energy project could benefit the community, there appeared sufficient unknowns or lack of clarity that the 

Board tabled Item 11 until further information could be provided. 
 



5 
 

6. Consent Calendar: Director Franklin moved to approve the consent calendar and seconded by Director 

Schneider. Calendar was approved unanimously.   
  

7. General Manager Report:  GM Morrissette mentioned he spoke with bookkeeper Cecelia Cummings 

requesting two appointments with her. 1 for the Adhoc Budget Committee and 2. For the Auditor. She 

commented that this yearôs óTax Seasonô has filled her appointment schedules until the middle of April. 

She will contact him if she has a cancellation.   

 

On a separate note, GM Morrissette reminded the Board and community that the deadline for agenda 

change and/or providing support material is the third Tuesday of every month. 
 

8. February Financials: President  Zuber stated that we need to meet with the bookkeeper to clarity some 

item in the current budget and fix some items that may be miscoded.  Director Franklin stated that facility 

fee variances have an annual expiration and asked GM Morrissette track the variance timelines and send a 

reminder courtesy notice to reapply for a variance.  GM  Morrissette said they will do so approximately 2 

months prior to the variance expiration. 
 

9. Wrightwood CERT Variance Request: CERT Supervisor, Strech Suba addressed the Board to issue two 

variances: 1 for the monthly CERT Supervisors meeting held at the Old Fire House and the second for the 

monthly training session at the Community Bldg.  A brief discussion let to President Zuber making the 

motion to accept variance request and Vice-President Hordyk seconding the motion, the motion was 

unanimously approved. 
 

10. Wrightwood Blues Society Proposal:  The Wrightwood Blues Society spokesperson presented the 

concept of a 6 X 8 Music/Art Wall of Fame to honor various local musicians and artists. She also mentioned 

that the honorarium could involve other Wrightwoodians who contributed to the betterment of the 

community.  The organization would fully fund and maintain the Wall. GM Morrissette mentioned that the 

organization President Greg Jones met with him earlier in the month to discuss the location of the wall and 

choosing to West side Community Center wall space currently blocked by the folding tables. GM 

Morrissette explained that after the discussion, President Jones and GM Morrissette agreed on that location. 

Director Zuber motioned to accept with the amendment that the Wall not be affixed permanently, and that 

the agreement would have an annual renewal. The Blues Society will provide a layout and diagram of the 

Wall for the Board to review and approve at a later date.  Director Lopiccolo motioned to approve the 

agreement as modified, Director Schneider second the motion. A 4:1 split approved the motion with 

Director Franklin being the descending vote. 
  

11. Support Letter Wrightwood Wind Energy Project: This item was moved up to just after Agency Reports 

to enable discussion and potential action to have timeline priority over other agenda items. 
 

12. Sunshine Ordinance:  Director Schneider expressed her concern about the 7pm start time of Board 

Meetings because of how late in the evening some of the meetings run and during these long meetings many 

attendees leave early prior to the meeting end. She proposed that The Board move the monthly Board 

Meeting  up an hour to 6:00pm.  After President Zuber voiced his concern that the earlier start time would 

not give him sufficient time to attend the start of the meeting and after some discussion, a compromise to 

start the meetings at 6:30pm was offered. Director Schneider made the motion to move the meeting start 

time to 6:30 that was second by Director Franklin. A 4:1 split approved the motion with President Zuber 

being the descending vote. 
 

13. Capital Improvement Plan:  GM Morrissette presented a 10 point prelude to a larger CIP to be presented 

in April. Some discussion of directing the GM on items of this list developed to directing the GM to modify 

the first two items, which were replacement tables and chairs for the community building. Director 

Schneider motion to purchase 24 folding tables and 100 folding padded chairs for the Community Bldg., 

Vice-President Hordyk seconds the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 



6 
 

14. Park and Recreation Event Coordinator: The concept of the position developed from the establishment 

of last yearôs Summer Adult Softball League that evolved into the development of the Fall Adult Soft Ball 

League. The two leagues collectively brought in $11,230.00 gross revenue. The Board initially requested 

GM Morrissette to research and report his finding of the position elsewhere in the Park and Recreation 

venue within California. After GM Morrissette brought back his finding and suggestion to have the position 

as an employee, the Board reviewed the material, had discussion and assigned the task of developing the 

position to an Adhoc Committee consisting of Directors Schneider and Lopiccolo. They brought to the 

Board the perspective of having the position as a 1099 contractor and along with the development of a draft 

contract through Counsel Kennedy, the Committee brought the contractor concept to the Board at the 

December 2018 Board Meeting. The Board sent the draft contract back to the committee, who in turn tuned 

it up and returned it March 5.  The Board continued to debate and discuss the merits of both concepts an 

independent contractor position vs. an employee.  Director Hordyk motioned to approve the establishment 

of the position as a contractor with Director Schneider seconding the motion. The Board approved the 

motion 4:1 with Director Franklin abstaining.   
    

15. 2019/2020 Budget Template: GM Morrissette presented a line item Chart of Account that will be used for 

the upcoming 2019/20 Budget review. Director Franklin and GM Morrissette explained that this Chart is in 

line with the direction from Director Franklin. President Zuber voiced an opinion that the Chart should be in 

line with the Chart developed by the Districtôs Bookkeeper. It was concurred that the bookkeeper has not 

honored the several request by the Budget Adhoc Committee or the GM. At the end of the discussion the 

Item had no action from the Board. 

 

16.  Future Board Meeting: APRIL 2, 2019 AT 6:30 PM in the Community Bldg. Items need to include 

the 2019/20 initial draft budget, the CIP, Solid Waste Recycling and the Reserve Policy 
 

17.  Directors Comments:  None of the Directors made a comment 
 

18. Adjournment  President Zuber adjourned the meeting at 9:35pm 

 

  

  

Minutes approved: ________________________________________________  

      President Wes Zuber  

  

Date__________________________________ 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 
 

 

 

 

ITEM 6 B 

 

SUNSHINE ORDINANCE 

 

RESOLUTION 2019-03 

                     

                       
 

 

 
 

 



8 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-03_ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

THE WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR THE  

CONDUCT OF ITS PUBLIC MEETINGS AND ACTIVITIES  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Wrightwood Community Services District finds as 

follows: 

A. The Wrightwood Community Services District (ñthe Districtò) is a community services district 

organized and operating pursuant to California Government Code Section 61000 et seq. 

B. The District is governed by an elected Board of Directors (ñthe Boardò) whose meetings are 

subject to the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54950 et 

seq. (ñthe Brown Actò) pursuant to California Government Code Section 61044. 

C. The Board is authorized by Government Code Section 54953.7 to impose requirements upon 

itself to allow greater access to its meetings than prescribed by the Brown Act. 

D. The purpose of this ordinance is to ensure that the Boardôs deliberations are open to the public 

to the fullest extent permitted by law and its activities are performed in a manner that reflects a dedication 

to the highest standards of integrity and accountability so as to continue to earn the trust and confidence 

of the public served by the District. 

THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS of the Wrightwood Community Services District 

does hereby adopt and ordain as follows: 

Section 1. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS . 

All meetings of the Board and all committees thereof shall be conducted in compliance with all 

applicable requirements of the Brown Act. 

Section 2. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS . 

2.1. Regular Meetings.  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954(a), beginning in April of 2019 

all regular meetings of the Board shall be held at 6:30 p.m. on the first Tuesday of each month at the 

Wrightwood Community Building located at 1275 State Highway 2, Wrightwood, California. 

2.2. Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board shall be called and conducted in accordance 

with Government Code Section 54956.  The Board shall not add any non-agenized item to the agenda 

of a special meeting. 

2.3. Agendas. 

2.3.1. Descriptions. 



9 
 

(a) Open Session.  The agenda for all Board meetings and all committee meetings that are open to 

the public shall contain a brief, general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed 

during the meeting and shall avoid the use of undefined abbreviations or acronyms not in common 

usage and terms whose meaning are not known to the general public.  The description of an agenda 

item is adequate if it is sufficiently clear and specific to alert a person whose interests are affected by 

the item that he or she may have reason to attend the meeting or seek more information about the item. 

(b) Closed Session.  Substantial compliance with the permissive provisions of Government Code 

Section 54954.5, as generally reflected in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference, is mandatory under this Ordinance with respect to the description of any closed session items 

on any Board meeting agenda. 

2.3.2. Public Comment.  The agenda for all meetings of the Board shall include an item for 

Public Comment so as to provide an express opportunity for members of the public to directly address 

the Board in accordance with the requirements of Government Code Section 54954.3(a) prior to the 

Boardôs consideration of the merits of any item placed on the agenda.  In the event that a motion is 

made to reorder the agenda, or add an item to the agenda, or otherwise take any Board action prior to 

the Public Comment portion of the agenda, the President of the Board shall ask any members of the 

public in attendance at the meeting whether they wish to comment on the motion that is pending before 

the Board.  During the Boardôs consideration of items discussed after the Public Comment portion of 

the agenda, the President of the Board should exercise best efforts to recognize any member of the 

public who wishes to speak on that issue prior to any action thereon that is taken by the Board.  While 

testimony and input received from the public during Board meetings is a valuable part of the Boardôs 

decision-making process, the Board President is nevertheless authorized pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54954.3(b) to limit the total amount of time allocated for public testimony on particular issues 

to a reasonable length of time, to limit public testimony to three (3) minutes or less for each individual 

speaker (although individual speakers will be permitted on a reasonable basis to transfer their unused 

allotment of time to another speaker), and to prevent a person who is unduly repetitive from continuing 

to speak. 

2.4. Posting.    The agendas of all Board meetings and all committee meetings that are open to the 

public shall be posted in the following locations:  (1) an exterior window or bulletin board situated 

outside the location of the Wrightwood Community Building which is accessible twenty-four (24) 

hours a day; (2) an exterior window or bulletin board situated outside the location of the Museum which 

is accessible twenty-four (24) hours a day; (3) an exterior window or bulletin board situated outside the 

location of Mountain Hardware which is accessible twenty-four (24) hours a day; and (4) as soon as 

possible, the full agenda packet shall be posted on the District website www.wrightwoodcsd.org and  

http://www.wrightwoodcsd.org/


10 
 

e-mailed to all persons who have so requested in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.1. 

Section 3. ANNUAL REVIEW . 

Each year the Board shall review this Ordinance to determine its effectiveness and the necessity for 

its continued operation.  The Districtôs General Manager shall report to the Board on the operation of 

this Ordinance, and make any recommendations deemed appropriate, including proposals to amend the 

Ordinance.  Upon conclusion of its review, the Board may take any action it deems appropriate 

concerning this Ordinance.  Nothing herein shall preclude the Board from taking action on the 

Ordinance at times other than upon conclusion of the annual review. 

Section 4. SEVERABILITY . 

If any provision of this Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances, is held 

invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be 

given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance 

are declared to be severable. 

Section 5. EFFECTIVE DATE . 

The provisions of this Ordinance shall supersede Ordinance No. 2018-1 adopted by the Board 

on December 4, 2018, and shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

Adopted this 2nd day of April 2019. 

AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

____________________________    

President, Board of Directors 

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Secretary, Board of Directors 



11 
 

 EXHIBIT A  

 

 

Under Government Code Section 54954.5, the following language has been provided by the State Legislature as 

sample language which will meet the mandate of the Brown Act for properly identifying closed session items on 

the Boardôs agenda: 

 

 

# LICENSE/PERMIT DETERMINATION (Government Code Section 54956.7) 

 

Applicant(s):  (Specify number of applicants) 

 

 

# CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS (Government Code Section 54956.8) 

 

Property:  (Specify street address; parcel number if no street address; or other unique reference of parcel 

under negotiation) 

 

District Negotiator:  (Specify names of negotiators attending closed session)  (If the specified negotiator 

is to be absent, an agent or designee may participate provided the name of the agent or designee is 

announced publicly prior to the closed session.) 

 

Negotiating parties:  [Specify name of party (not agent)] 

 

Under negotiation:  (Specify whether instruction to negotiator will concern price, terms of payment, or 

both) 

 

 

# CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION [Government Code Section 

54956.9(d)(1)] 

 

Name of case:  (Specify by reference to claimantôs name, name of parties, case or claim numbers) 

 

or 

 

Case name unspecified:  (Specify whether disclosure would jeopardize service of process or existing 

settlement negotiations) 

 

 

# CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2):  (Specify number 

of potential cases) 

 

# CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

 

Initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4):  (Specify number of potential 

cases) 

 

 



1 
 

# LIABILITY CLAIMS (Government Code Section 54956.95) 

 

Claimant:  (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961) 

 

Agency claimed against:  (Specify name) 

 

 

# THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES (Government Code Section 54957) 

 

Consultation with:  (Specify name of law enforcement agency and title of officer, or name of 

applicable District representative and title) 

 

 

# PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT (Government Code Section 54957) 

 

Title:  (Specify description of position to be filled) 

 

 

# PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code Section 54957) 

 

Title:  (Specify position title of employee being reviewed) 

 

 

# PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE (Government Code Section 

54957) 

 

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline, 

dismissal, or release.) 

 

 

# CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code Section 54957.6) 

 

District designated representatives:  (Specify names of designated representatives attending the 

closed session)  (If circumstances necessitate the absence of a specified representative, an agent or 

designee may participate in place of the absent representative so long as the name of the agent or 

designee is announced at an open session held prior to the closed session.) 

 

Employee organization:  (Specify name of organization representing employee or employees in 

question) 

 

or 

 

Unrepresented employee:  (Specify position title of unrepresented employee who is the subject of 

negotiations) 

 

 

# CASE REVIEW/PLANNING (Government Code Section 54957.8) 

 

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider case review 

or planning.) 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

 

    ITEM 7 

 

 

       GENERAL MANAGER 

   REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

April 2, 2019 
 

County Special Districts Director Luther Snoke must be a very busy gentleman, but none the less I remain 

diligent to have a face to face meeting with him and so far, I have contacted and spoken with his office 

several time to set up an appointment and am getting the typical ñI will look at his calendar and get back 

with youò diversion. First District Supervisor Robert Lovingoodôs Field Rep. Susan Drake is wanting to 

participate in that meeting to observe the process and assist in getting resolve to our inquiry. After 6 phone 

calls and 2 email requests, on April 4, Mr. Snoke responded through email around 4pm. This led to a short 

email conversation concluded by Mr. Snoke that he will assign Dennis Stout to review the information in 

anticipation to answer my outstanding questions concerning the startup disbursement after funds were 

withheld by Special Districts prior to the inaugural WCSD Board Meeting July 1,2017. 
 

We embark into a new soft ball season with a warm up Tournament League consisting of April 14, 28 and 

May 5 game dates for 10 teams. We will return for new seasons the Summer and Fall Leagues. Our 

investment in equipment last season helps to minimize this seasonôs expenses. I have already correlated most 

of the programs with Monica Ciccarelli.  
 

I will take a short unpaid leave of absence starting Saturday May 18 and returning to work Monday May 27. I 

have purchased a condo at the Primavera Condominiums in the city of Cagayan De Oro, unit 519. My phone 

number in the Philippines is 63 9162783335. I have Fiber 25mb at the condo, my own computer and will be 

leaving the WCSD laptop and cell phone here. During the Districts normal work hour, I will be available 

when needed and plan to work on some projects for the district without compensation. This trip is primarily 

to submit the final paperwork to the US Consulate in Cebu to bring my bride to the High Desert, also I will 

fulfill an inaugural óhoney-doô list and she will help me to renovate my smile. 
 

We are in process of creating the 2019/2020 Dump Cards with a goal of having them delivered to the property 

owners by Saturday, June 15 two weeks prior to the mandated deadline of July 1. Each year the process 

becomes easier and I want to thank President Zuber for his expertise of Data Base development and making 

the process for staff and myself nearly seamless. Often, we are able to provide new or replacement cards 

within hours of the request. We have developed a near flawless checks and balance system of verifying the 

property owner through using three separate County resources. Of the nearly 200 new or replacement cards 

made this past year, nearly all dealt with a change of ownership or that the data provided by the County did 

not have a proper mailing address. About half of the calls relating to the dump cards were actually inquiries 

about the transfer station location, holiday schedule, hours and/or acceptable items to be disposed or CR&R 

services. We will add that information to the website. 
 

The process of developing the Prop 68 Park Grant application is in full swing. Master Gardener Michelle 

Hannon has volunteered her services in gardening/landscaping in exchange for learning basic grant writing 

procedures and park infrastructure. We have dedicated Fridays from 9:30am to 1pm to work on the 

application process. The rest of my work week remains dedicated to other issues. 
 

I thank the Board for directing me to purchase 24 new 6ô plastic tables and 100 new folding padded chairs. 

We already have the tables and due to a warehousing/shipping error we received the wrong chairs. We 

returned the chairs and should receive the proper chairs by the end of this week. In seeking the best price for 

both items, we have saved approximately $2500.00 from the initial cost estimate. 
 

We will be making a Skate Park payment of $27,000 this month. Then in April 2020 we will make our final 

payment and this will free up $27,000 for other purposes of which there are many. 

 

Thank You 

Al Morrissette 

 



4 
 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 8 

 

MARCH 

FINANCIALS 

 

DISCUSSION 

AND 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 



5 
 

 

 
 

 



6 
 

 

 

 

 Facility Rental Revenue March 2019

Group Schedule
Rental Hours 

per Month

Community 

Building

Old Fire 

House
Parking Lot Kitchen

Current Hourly 

Rate

Monthly Rental 

Payment
Variance

 Variance 

Allocation

 Variance Start 

Date

 AA Wednesday  Weekly 6 X $13.00 $78.00 No request $0.00

 AA Sunday  Weekly 5 X $13.00 $65.00 No request $0.00

 Baha'I Faith  Temp Suspended 0 No request

Baby Shower 1 X 5 X $13.50 $67.50 No request $0.00

 CERT  Twice Monthly 2 X X $0.00 $0.00 yes $26.50 3/5/2019

 Chamber of Commerce  N/A 0 No request

 Chad Keel  Neighborhood Watch 1.5 X $13.50 $20.25 Denied $0.00

Curch of Music Concert 5 X $13.50 $67.50 No request $0.00

 Cooking W'Kids  Weekly 4 X $50.00 $200.00 No request $0.00

 Farmers Market  Weekly 20 X $13.50 $270.00 No request $0.00

 Fire Safe Council  Monthly 4 X $13.00 $0.00 Yes $26.00 6/5/2018

 Gypsy Mamma  Craft Fair 0 X $13.50 $0.00 No request $0.00

 Inspire Charter Schools  Gingerbread Party 0 X $13.50 $0.00 No request $0.00

Lions Bunco Monthly 3.5 X $13.50 $47.25 No request $0.00

Lions Rising Star 3 X $13.50 $40.50 No request $0.00

 Line Dancers  Weekly 8 X $13.50 $0.00 Yes $108.00 8/7/2018

 Meet & Greet  Quarterly 0 $13.50 $0.00 Yes $0.00

 Pine Needle Quilt Guild  Monthly 0 X $13.50 $0.00 No request $0.00

 Service  Once 3 X X $13.50 $40.50 No request $0.00

 Snowline Christian Academy class 12 X $13.50 $162.00 No request $0.00

 Snowline Christian Academy class 8 X $13.00 $104.00 No request $0.00

 Snowline Players rehersal 24 X $13.50 $0.00 Yes $324.00 9/17/2018

 Tri Community Co-Op  Every Other Week 12 X $13.50 $162.00 No request $0.00

 WWPOA  Meeting 3 X $13.00 $39.00 No request $0.00

WW Historical Society Meeting 2 X $13.00 $26.00 Denied $0.00

 Wrightwood Center Stage  Concerts 10 X $13.50 $135.00 No request $0.00

 Monthly Total 141 $1,524.50 $484.50



7 
 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 9 
 

LIONôS CLUB 

CO-SPONSORSHIP 

PROPOSAL 
 

DISCUSSION 

AND 

POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

     
 

 

 

 

 

 



8 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

I appreciate the Lionôs Club fresh approach to bringing both of these programs to the 

WCSD in a co-sponsorship. There have been numerous times during public comment 

or other board meeting discussions, the question of recreational or district sponsored 

events have been mentioned. Here are two opportunities to promote the WCSD. In 

both cases, similar events and programs can be found within Park and Recreation 

departments either as inhouse programs financed and staffed by the department, or 

co-sponsored programs partnering with a local community organization.  

 

 The first will be the annual Easter Morning Breakfast. This venue enables the full 

spectrum of residents to fellowship while sharing a traditional Easter Morning 

breakfast. It also aligns with the traditional Wrightwood Easter Egg Hunt held at our 

Hollis Steward Park. 

 

The second opportunity involves the Lionôs Club monthly ógame nightô that is open 

to all ages but usually entices senior citizens away from their stay at home routine 

into a social setting that often contributes to friendships. 

 

In both situations, the Lionôs Club will be charging a door fee to help cover the cost 

of the event. They will provide their volunteer force to perform all the tasks needed 

and the WCSD will have our staff working their traditional shifts or be on emergency 

stand-by. The WCSD will cross promote with the Lions Club and we will also attain 

some revenue for our Park and Recreation department. 

 

Thank You 

Al Morrissette 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9 
 

 

REQUEST FOR FACILITY RATE VARIANCE 

The District is prohibited by Article XVI. Section 6, of the California Constitution from ïmaking any 

gift, or authorize the making of any gift, of any public money or thing of value to any individual, 
municipal or other corporation whateveréò As a result, any reduction in the Districtôs standard facility 
usage rates that may be for such cost variance should be tied to a valid public purpose that benefits the 
District. Specifically, eligibility for a facility rate variance is limited to only those applicants that are 
engaging is uses related to the particular public duties and functions that the District is empowered to 
preform within its jurisdictional boundaries pursuant to Government Code Section 6100 et seq. as 
expressly authorized by the San Bernardino County Local Agency Formation Commission. Therefore, 
please describe in the ñExplanationò section below the following: (1) the nexus between the cost 
reduction requested from the District and the corresponding benefit that would be received by the Public 
and (2) how such benefit falls within the scope of the Districtôs authorized public purpose ï i.e., Street 
lighting, park and recreation, solid waste and recycling, and wastewater. Please feel free to attach and 
supporting materialôs that you believe would be relevant. Though not required, you may want to attend 

the Board meeting to answer questions. 

 
ORGANIZATION: TIMBERLINE LIONS CLUB 

CONTACT: VICKY RINEK  

ADDRESS: PO BOX 444 WRIGHTWOOD CA 92397 

CONTACT PHONE NUMBER: 760-249-3245 

CONTACT EMAIL: SECRETARY@TIMBERLINELIONS.ORG 

 

VARIANCE REQUEST 

AMOUNT TO BE CONSIDERED: $85 RENTAL for one day 

DATE/DATES TO BE CONSIDERED: Sunday, April 21, 2019 

EXPLANATION: 

TIMBERLINE LIONS CLUB is requesting a variance on the rentals for the community building for the 

Community Easter Breakfast. The day would be approx. $170, and we are requesting a variance at $85. 

The Easter Breakfast is a tradition that has been provided to the community for nearly 40 years. 

Many communities sponsor this type of community recreation and hope that the WCSD would consider 

joining with the Timberline Lions Club and bringing this event to the community. 

The WCSD would be noted as a co-sponsor on all flyers and in the newspaper. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



10 
 

REQUEST FOR FACILITY RATE VARIANCE 

The District is prohibited by Article XVI. Section 6, of the California Constitution from ï
making any gift, or authorize the making of any gift, of any public money or thing of value to 
any individual, municipal or other corporation whateveréò As a result, any reduction in the 
Districtôs standard facility usage rates that may be for such cost variance should be tied to a 
valid public purpose that benefits the District. Specifically, eligibility for a facility rate 
variance is limited to only those applicants that are engaging is uses related to the particular 
public duties and functions that the District is empowered to preform within its jurisdictional 

boundaries pursuant to Government Code  
Section 6100 et seq. as expressly authorized by the San Bernardino County Local Agency 
Formation Commission. Therefore, please describe in the ñExplanationò section below the 
following: (1) the nexus between the cost reduction requested from the District and the 
corresponding benefit that would be received by the Public and (2) how such benefit falls 
within the scope of the Districtôs authorized public purpose ï i.e., Street lighting, park and 
recreation, solid waste and recycling, and wastewater. Please feel free to attach and 
supporting materialôs that you believe would be relevant. Though not required, you may want 

to attend the Board meeting to answer questions.  
  

ORGANIZATION: TIMBERLINE LIONS CLUB 

CONTACT: VICKY RINEK  

ADDRESS: PO BOX 444 WRIGHTWOOD CA 92397 

CONTACT PHONE NUMBER: 760-249-3245 

CONTACT EMAIL: SECRETARY@TIMBERLINELIONS.ORG 

  

VARIANCE REQUEST  

AMOUNT TO BE CONSIDERED:  $45 RENTAL PER GAME NIGHT 

DATE/DATES TO BE CONSIDERED: MARCH, APRIL, MAY, JUNE, JULY, AUG,  

SEPT, OCT 2019  

 EXPLANATION:   

TIMBERLINE LIONS CLUB is requesting a variance on the rentals for the community 

building for a community game night. The eight game nights would be approx. $612 and  

we are requesting a variance at $360.  

The game night is a community recreation and hope that the WCSD would consider being a 

sponsor with the Timberline Lions Club. The first game, March 16, 2019, was enjoyed by 

many. A suggestion card was given out and all responded with a ñYESò to a monthly game 

night.  

 

Thank You 

  



11 
 

  

ITEM 10 

SURPLUS TABLES 

AND 

CHAIRS 

 

DISCUSSION 

AND 

 POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 



12 
 

                        Staff Report 
 

No one seems to be able to verify the startup time when a Church that was using the Community 

Building on Sundays had discontinued their rental agreement. They left behind 50 used red chairs 

that were adopted by the County Park and Recreation Department.  The non-folding stacking 

chairs include hooks to link them together in long rows and a back pocket for books, song books 

and other materials. These features had no benefit to the department but the padded seating became 

more popular for performances and /or programs that lasted a long time. Moving forward a couple 

decades, nearly all of these chairs need covering and framework repair or replacement as daily use 

took its toll. The 24 folding tables that are framed to stand on end with a partner table attached 

were innovative 30+ years ago but due to design, they are clumsy, heavy and currently in various 

states of disrepair.  

 

Soon after the transfer of property from SB County CSA-56 to the WCSD, I requested 

documentation for the purpose of determining the remaining usability, knowing the initial purchase 

price and replacement cost, plus having historic maintenance records. Unfortunately, many items 

such as these tables and chairs are inherited from the County without documentation, as their 

system usually is a resource pool without specifics. 

 

During the March 5,2019 Board Meeting, the Board directed me to replace the 24 tables. Also, 

the Board directed me to replace the stacking chairs, plus some worn folding chairs with a 

combined total of 100 new folding chairs. The replacement of these items will shorten custodial 

time and effort, plus the transferring to the church clears more floor space within the Community 

Building.  

 

I ask the Board to donate these tables and chairs to the Fountain of Living Waters Four Square 

Church in Phelan. This helps the church by increasing their ability to provide public service and it 

enables us to stay within surplus distribution guidelines. 

 

Thank You 

Al Morri ssette 

General Manager 

Wrightwood CSD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 
 

 

 

 

ITEM 11 
 

BOOKKEEPER 

CONTRACT 

RENEWAL 

 

DISCUSSION 

AND 

POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

                                                                                  

 

 

 

 

 



14 
 

Staff Report 

 

I spoke with Cecelia Cummings and was able to establish Wednesday April  24 

@ 3pm as the meeting time for the Adhoc committee in her office. She is 

apologetic about not having time for the meeting before that date and explained 

that due to the federal government shutdown and our recent inclement weather, 

it has made this óTax Seasonô exceptionally difficult. 

 

 She has been working with the State Controllerôs Office in resolving some of 

their questions and concerns. Apparently when CSA-56 did their final audit 

that included the transfer of funds, property and assets to the WCSD, the State 

Controllerôs Office found some discrepancies. Those seem to have been 

resolved and Cummings will have our yearôs end finished shortly.  She is also 

working on items within the PBC from Eadie and Payne so that our audit will 

continue to move forward.  

 

We also discussed some of the concerns of the Chart of Accounts and she 

mentioned that it is based upon the first budget format we started the District 

with, had some small adjustment as we became more familiar with Quick 

Books. She does not have concerns with the Chart of Accounts I developed 

because it shows more depth and is similar to hers. 

 

I recommend renewing our contract with Cecelia Cummings, CPA. 

 

Thank You 

Al Morrissette 



15 
 

 



16 
 

 



17 
 

 



18 
 

 

 

ITEM 12 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-04 

AND 

RESOLUTION 2019-05 
 

STATE PARK GRANTS 

PER 

PROPOSITION 68 
 

DISCUSSION 

AND 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

 



19 
 

Staff Report 

 

Proposition 68 was passed by the voters in 2016 to provide water conservation and new or renovating 

Community parks. It is in the third and probably last allocation. Prior to the Proposition going to the voter 

several conservation and wildland preservationist captures most of the funds. But numerous other park 

supporting organizations and local park and recreation districts were able to lobby for the remaining funds to go 

exclusively to community park renovation or development. 

 

In reviewing this opportunity, it seems viable that we have a chance to have a successful application. We have 

on our team a Registered Master Gardener and some  residents who offered to help during specific phases of the 

process that they have knowledge or professional experience. 

 

The guidelines are specific and utilizes a point system with 100 points being maximum. My preliminary 

research suggest that we could attain in the range of 90-96 points, which would put us in  the running. I have 

included in this agenda item two separate resolutions. This is because one of the requirements is that the 

parkland be contiguous and our needs span all of our parks that form two contiguous zones. Each grant proposal 

has a range of $200 K - $8.5M. 

 

My strategy to hold five community input meetings as required by the guidelines and document by our 

promotion of the meetings, having a sign-up sheet for each meeting and as they require have some during the 

daytime, evening, weekday and weekend hours. 

 

One application titled Vivian Null Park will include an extensive renovation of the Community Building 

keeping its historic value while upgrading to meet Leeds qualifications. The Park restrooms, septic system, 

service shed, and parking lot will all be proposed upgrades and renovations. This is an opportunity to conform 

to applicable ADA requirements and utilize water conservation through underground collection devises, low 

flow and variating timing manifold, valves and regulators along with newest design sprinkler heads. Landscape 

will become drought and native plant demonstration gardens including a mulch facility.  

 

The second resolution pertains to renovation of the skate park, upgrading the Hollis Steward playground that 

was developed in1997 and the manufacturer of the majority of playground equipment in our park is no longer in 

existence. Historically the lifespan of playground equipment is 8-10 years with some being 15 years. There have 

been significant changes in the legislative requirements of playground equipment, and we would need to meet 

those Stricker laws and regulations. Each application needs to provide a new feature and that is where the most 

value of the community meetings will evolve into hopefully a variety of suggestions. 

 

The deadline is August 2019 and the Performance period is July 1, 2018 ï June 30, 2022. This grant is unique 

because it does not necessitate matching fund. I purposely paralleled these applications with the Capital 

Improvement Plan. The twin applications are the resolution template developed by the State Park staff. 

 

Thank You 

Al Morrissette 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

                                                Approving the Application for  

STATEWIDE PARK DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY RE VITALIZATION 

PROGRAM GRANT FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the responsibility by 

the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of the Statewide Park Development 

and Community Revitalization Grant Program, setting up necessary procedures governing the 

application; and 

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and Recreation require the 

Applicant to certify by resolution the approval of the application before submission of said application 

to the State; and 

WHEREAS, successful Applicants will enter into a contract with the State of California to complete the 

Grant Scope project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT BOARD of DIRECTORS hereby: APPROVES THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR 

THE VIVIAN NULL PARK  AND 

1. Certifies that said Applicant has or will have available, prior to commencement of any work on 

the project included in this application, the sufficient funds to complete the project; and 

2. Certifies that if the project is awarded, the Applicant has or will have sufficient funds to 

operate and maintain the project, and 

3. Certifies that the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General Provisions 

contained in the contract shown in the Grant Administration Guide; and 

4. Delegates the authority to Albert Morrissette, General Manager to conduct all negotiations, 

sign and submit all documents, including, but not limited to applications, agreements, amendments, and 

payment requests, which may be necessary for the completion of the Grant Scope; and 

5. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 
6. Will consider promoting inclusion per Public Resources Code §80001(b) (S A-G). 

Approved and adopted the 2nd day of   April 2019 , the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution Number 2019-04 was adopted by the  

Wrightwood Community Services District Board of Directors following a roll call 

vote: 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Absent:                                              ____________________________                                                        

President Wes Zuber 

___________________________ 

Board Secretary 



21 
 

                            RESOLUTION 2019-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

Approving the Application for  

STATEWIDE PARK DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY RE VITALIZATION 

PROGRAM GRANT FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the responsibility 

by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of the Statewide Park 

Development and Community Revitalization Grant Program, setting up necessary procedures 

governing the application; and 

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and Recreation require 

the Applicant to certify by resolution the approval of the application before submission of said 

application to the State; and 

WHEREAS, successful Applicants will enter into a contract with the State of California to complete 

the Grant Scope project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT BOARD of DIRECTORS hereby: APPROVES THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION 

FOR THE HOLLIS STEWARD PARK AND 

1. Certifies that said Applicant has or will have available, prior to commencement of any work on 

the project included in this application, the sufficient funds to complete the project; and 

2. Certifies that if the project is awarded, the Applicant has or will have sufficient funds to operate 

and maintain the project, and 

3. Certifies that the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General Provisions 

contained in the contract shown in the Grant Administration Guide; and 

4. Delegates the authority to Albert Morrissette, General Manager to conduct all negotiations, 

sign and submit all documents, including, but not limited to applications, agreements, amendments, 

and payment requests, which may be necessary for the completion of the Grant Scope; and 

5. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 
6. Will consider promoting inclusion per Public Resources Code §80001(b) (S A-G). 

Approved and adopted the 2nd day of   April 2019  I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution Number 2019-04 was adopted by the  

Wrightwood Community Services District Board of Directors following a roll call vote: 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Absent:                                                          ___________________________ 

                                             President Wes Zuber 

___________________________ 

Board Secretary   



22 
 

  

   

   ITEM 13 

   SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

DIVERSION PROGRAM 

AND 

  REPORTING 
 

               DISCUSSION 

                      AND 

  POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

 

 

 

 



23 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
On January 29, Brent Speers from CR&R Environmental Services met with me to discuss the revised CalRecycle requirement and 

reporting methods that directly involve our District and our CR&R Franchise Agreement. 

 

Fortunately, CR&R services most commercial businesses within the WCSD jurisdiction. Utilizing data from CR&R, we can 

establish a data base that distinguishes which commercial entity meets the Stateôs reporting and implementation mandates and 

which ones do not. We will need to create some documents and forms to be distributed to all commercial enterprises within our 

district, but once implemented, the program should provide the monitoring and other requirement needed, including the annual 

reporting to CalRecycle. 

 

Keep in mind that through our Franchise Agreement with CR&R, they already provide quarterly recycling reports to our agency 

that we include in our annual report to SB County Waste Management every June. 

 

Tonight, the Board reviews and possibly approves two ordinances:  ORDINANCE NO. 2019-01  

ESTABLISHING MANDATORY COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE SERVICE AND PROVIDING RULES AND 

REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE COLLECTION, HANDLING AND DISPOSAL OF COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE. 

And ORDINANCE NO. 2019-02 ESTABLISHING A COMMERCIAL RECYCLING PROGRAM. 

Business Commercial Recycling Requirements. A business (includes public entities) that generates four cubic yards or more of 

commercial solid waste per week or is a multifamily residential dwelling of five units or more shall arrange for recycling services. 

Businesses can take one or any combination of the following in order to reuse, recycle, compost or otherwise divert solid waste 

from disposal:  

o Self-haul. 

o Subscribe to a hauler(s). 

o Arrange for the pickup of recyclable materials.  

o Subscribe to a recycling service that may include mixed waste processing that yields diversion results comparable to 

source separation. 

A property owner of a commercial business or multifamily residential dwelling may require tenants to source separate their 

recyclable materials to aid in compliance with this section. 

CalRecycle advises businesses to contact their local recycling coordinator to find out how to recycle in their community and if 

there are any specific requirements in their community. Communities may have mandatory commercial recycling ordinances with 

different thresholds or more specific business recycling requirements than the state law. The local recycling coordinator also may 

have related business opportunities and/or resources to share. 

Recycling benefits identified by CalRecycle include: 

o Opportunities for businesses or multifamily complexes to save money. 

o Creating jobs in California by providing materials for recycling manufacturing facilities. 

o Reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

o Keeping valuable materials out of landfills. 

o Creating a healthy environment for the community and future generations by recovering natural resources. 

 

Local Government Requirements. Each jurisdiction shall implement a commercial solid waste recycling program that consists of 

education, outreach and monitoring of businesses, that is appropriate for that jurisdiction and is designed to divert commercial solid 

waste from businesses, whether or not the jurisdiction has met the requirements of PRC Section 41780.  

Each jurisdiction shall report the progress achieved in implementing its commercial recycling program, including education, 

outreach and monitoring, and if applicable, enforcement efforts and exemptions, by providing updates in its electronic annual 

report. 

CalRecycle Review. CalRecycle will review each jurisdictionôs commercial recycling program that consists of education, outreach 

and monitoring. The following is an overview of the review process:  

o An evaluation as part of its formal AB 939 review, conducted every two or four years pursuant to PRC 41825, of each 

jurisdictionôs programs, which includes an annual jurisdiction site visit, review of the Electronic Annual Report, and other 

information a jurisdiction may deem relevant. 

o If the jurisdiction is found to not have made a good-faith effort in implementing its programs, possibly including its 

mandatory commercial recycling program, CalRecycle can place the jurisdiction on a compliance order as part of the AB 939 

review, and if it fails to adequately meet the conditions of the compliance order, then CalRecycle could consider a penalty hearing. 

 

Thank You 

Al Morrissette 

General Manager 

 

 

 



24 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-01 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING MANDATORY COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE SERVICE 

AND PROVIDING RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE 

COLLECTION, HANDLING AND DISPOSAL OF COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Wrightwood Community Services District (ñDistrictò) finds and declares:  

 

A. That, pursuant to the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (public Resources Code Sections 40000 

et seq.), the state has mandated that local agencies make adequate provisions for Solid Waste handling within their 

jurisdictions; and  

 

B. That, pursuant to Condition No. 6 of Resolution No. 3245 of the Local Agency Formation Commission County of 

the County of San Bernardino (ñLAFCOò), the District is authorized to collect, transfer, and dispose of solid waste 

and to provide solid waste handling services, including but not limited to source reduction, recycling, and composting 

activities, pursuant to Division 30 (commencing with Section 40000), and consistent with Section 41821.2 of the 

Public Resources Code within the boundaries of the District; and  

 

C. That, pursuant to State law, the District is authorized to execute its powers for the purpose of the collection or 

disposal of solid waste or refuse matter and may contract for the collection and disposal of solid waste or refuse matter; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Wrightwood Community Services District 

as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section 2  Definitions 

Section 3  Detachable bin requirements 

Section 4  Location of detachable bin  

Section 5  Placement of material in detachable bin 

Section 6  Required solid waste removal 

Section 7  Requirements for self-haulers 

Section 8  Vehicle requirements for conveyance of solid waste 

Section 9  Collection periods 

Section 10  Prohibition against scavenging 

Section 11  Dumping, placing, burning and burial restrictions 

Section 12  Unsightly solid waste deemed nuisance 

Section 13  Property owner alley clearance duties 

Section 14  Accumulation of waste matter restricted 

Section 15  Restraint of animals to protect collectors 

Section 16  Regulation-making powers 

Section 17  Collection areas 

Section 18  Collection charges 

Section 19  Liability for Payment of Fees Mandatory Collection 

Section 20  Billing Cycle and Penalty for Delinquent Payments 

Section 21  Discontinuation of Services 

Section 22  Fee a Civil Debt 

Section 23  Lien for Ninety (90) Day Delinquencies  

Section 24  Inspection of premises--policy enforcement 

Section 25  Alternate enforcement 

Section 26  Appeals 

Section 27  Penalties 

Section 28  Severability 

Section 29  Publication and Posting 

Section 30   Effective Date 



25 
 

SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS. 

 

For the purpose of this Policy the following words and phrases shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them 

by this section. 

 

2.01 Contractor/Hauler - means a person, persons, firm or corporation authorized by contract with the District to 

provide solid waste collection services within the District. 

 

2.02 Detachable bin - means a container provided by the hauler and designed for mechanical emptying and 

provided by the District or contractor where applicable for the accumulation and storage of solid waste. 

 

2.03 Garbage - means a form of solid waste which is putrescible animal, fish, fowl, food, fruit or vegetable matter 

resulting from the cultivation, preparation, storage, handling, decay or consumption of such substance. 

 

2.04 Hazardous Waste - means a waste, or combination of wastes, which because of its quantity, concentration or 

physical, chemical or infectious characteristics may do either of the following:  

 

2.04.01 Cause, or significantly contribute to, an increase in mortality or an increase in serious irreversible or 

incapacitating reversible illness. 

 

20.402 Pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human health or environment when improperly treated, 

stored, transported or disposed of or otherwise managed. 

 

2.05 Place or Premises - means every dwelling house, dwelling unit; apartment house or multiple-dwelling 

building; trailer or mobile home park; store; restaurant; rooming house; hotel; motel; office building; department store; 

manufacturing, processing or assembling shop or plant; and every other place or premises where any person resides, 

or any business is carried on or conducted within the District. 

 

2.06 Refuse - means solid waste. 

 

2.07 Recyclable - means any paper, glass, cardboard, plastic, used motor oil, ferrous metal, aluminum, or any item 

or material that has been separated from solid waste, and has an economic value, and is deposited in a recyclable 

material detachable bin provided by the District or in a privately-owned detachable bin and is designated to be 

recyclable material for either the District to collect, or customer to self-haul. 

 

2.08 Rubbish - means a form of solid waste which is non-putrescible, useless, unused, unwanted or discarded 

material or debris, either combustible or noncombustible, including but not limited to paper, card board, grass, tree or 

shrub trimmings, straw, clothing, wood or wood products, crockery, glass, rubber, metal, plastic, construction material, 

and similar material. 

 

2.09 Solid Waste - means all putrescible and non-putrescible solid, semisolid and liquid wastes, including garbage, 

trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles and 

parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated or chemically fixed sewage sludge which 

is not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes, and other discarded solid and 

semisolid wastes. Solid waste does not include hazardous waste. Solid waste does include recyclable material. Solid 

waste includes dirt, soil, rock, decomposed rock, gravel, sand, or other aggregate material. 

 

2.10 Solid Waste Collector - means personnel employed by the District or contractors for the collection and 

disposal of solid waste. 

 

2.11 Standard Container - means a metal, plastic or rubber container, twenty- to thirty-two- gallon capacity 

District, not to exceed a weight of fifteen pounds when empty, with side bail handles and a tight-fitting lid, designed 

and manufactured for the accumulation and storage of solid waste, or plastic and/or paper bags manufactured for the 

accumulation and storage of refuse. The top diameter of the container shall in no case be smaller than the diameter of 

the detachable bin at the bottom. 

SECTION 3.  DETACHABLE BIN REQUIREMENTS 



26 
 

3.01 Every owner, tenant, lessee or occupant of any premises where solid waste is generated shall maintain upon 

the premises sufficient number of Detachable bin for receiving and holding all solid waste generated between the 

times of removal.  All solid waste on the premises shall be kept in said Detachable bin. 

 

3.02 Every owner, operator, manager or person in charge of any hotel, restaurant, cafe, cafeteria, hospital, public 

dining room or other place where food is prepared for sale, sold or offered for sale for human consumption and every 

owner, operator, manager or person in  charge of any store, market or other place where meat, fish, fowl, vegetables, 

fruit or any food is sold or offered for human consumption shall provide a separate standard container for receiving 

and holding all garbage created upon the premises between the times of collection; provided, however, the garbage 

may be placed in the same Detachable bin as rubbish if the garbage is drained and securely wrapped or sealed in 

plastic bags prior to placement in the container or bin. Any organic waste as described in Assembly Bill 1825 shall be 

subject to the Districtôs organic waste recycling requirements as established by Ordinance No. 2019-0_. 

 

3.03 Detachable bins, and/or garbage containers, shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition. It is 

unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to use solid waste containers that do not conform to the provisions of this 

policy or that may have ragged or sharp edges or any other defect liable to hamper or injure the person collecting the 

contents thereof. If, within five days after written notice of a violation of this section from the General Manager or 

designee, such container is not repaired or replaced as necessary, further service for the container may be suspended 

until the violation is corrected. The notice of violation shall be deemed served when securely attached to the container 

determined not in conformance with the provisions of this section. 

 

SECTION 4.  LOCATION OF DETACHABLE BIN REQUIREMENTS 

 

4.01 At commercial properties serviced by the District, the detachable bin shall be placed as follows for collection: 

 

4.01.01 Customers adjoining an alley shall place their detachable bin adjacent to but not within the alley, unless 

otherwise approved by the Hauler.  

 

4.01.02 Customers may utilize one of established levels of collection service. Fees for different levels of service are 

set by resolution. In special circumstances, the General Manager or designee, may designate detachable bin location. 

 

 4.01.02.01  Curbside: Detachable bin shall be placed at the curbside, or equivalent, or adjacent to the alley 

before five-thirty a.m. on collection days. Sidewalks shall not be blocked. 

 

 4.01.02.02 Driveway: Detachable bin shall be placed adjacent to the driveway before five-thirty a.m. on 

collection days. Driveway clearance must be sufficient to accommodate collection equipment. 

 

4.01.03 Detachable bin located in a permanent enclosure shall be made accessible to the hauler at the designated 

collection time. This includes removing locks and clearing obstructions so collection vehicle can easily access 

Detachable bin. 

 

SECTION 5.  PLACEMENT OF MATERIAL IN DETACHABLE BIN 

 

5.01 The following shall govern the placement of material in Detachable bin for collection: 

 

5.01.01 Wooden boxes, crates and other non-recyclable, bulky items shall be broken and flattened before being placed 

in a detachable bin or tied in a bundle no more than eighteen inches in diameter and four feet in length and placed 

beside the standard container. 
 

5.01.02 Vacuum dust, sweepings and ashes shall be securely wrapped or enclosed in a bag prior to placement in the 

standard container. 
 

5.01.03 Garbage shall be drained and wrapped in paper or secured in plastic bags prior to placement in the standard 

container. 

 

5.01.04 Animal waste shall be wrapped. 

 



27 
 

5.01.05 Sharp-edged and pointed material such as glass and metal shall be packaged before placement in the 

detachable bin in such a way as to protect refuse handlers from being cut or wounded when handling the detachable 

bin and contents with ordinary care. 

 

5.01.06 Tree trimmings shall be tied in bundles not more than eighteen inches in diameter nor more than four feet in 

length and shall include branches and logs no more than three inches in diameter or shall be cut in short lengths and 

placed in the standard containers. In areas serviced by the District, bundled tree trimmings shall be collected according 

to the contractor. 

 

5.01.07 When filled, the standard container shall not weigh more than the limits specified for the container. 

 

5.01.08 Placing recyclable material in solid waste bin is prohibited. Placement of material in detachable bin for 

collection shall be as follows: 

 

 5.01.08.01 All refuse must be placed in standard containers or detachable bin. 

 

 5.01.08.02 Garbage must be drained and securely wrapped or sealed in plastic bags prior to placement in 

containers or bins.  

 

5.01.09 All detachable bins must be located in a county approved bin enclosure, or in an area approved by the hauler. 

 

SECTION 6.  REQUIRED SOLID WASTE REMOVAL 

 

6.01 No person, persons, firm or corporation other the Districtôs authorized solid waste hauler acting pursuant to 

their contract with the District, solid waste collection crews or a person, or firm acting under the authority and within 

the limitation of a valid self-hauler permit issued pursuant to this policy, shall collect solid waste within the District. 

 

6.02 No person, persons, firm or corporation other than the District or one of the District- authorized solid waste 

contractors acting pursuant to their contract with the District shall provide temporary bin service for solid waste. 

 

6.03   Except as otherwise authorized by the General Manager or hauler, solid waste collection shall be provided 

from commercial property at a minimum of once a week. 

 

6.04  Solid waste collection shall be provided not less than once a week except that at each business engaged in 

the sale or production of food and at each multifamily commercial property which receives bin service, such collection 

shall be provided not less than twice weekly. Commercial property includes, but is not limited to, apartment house, 

boarding house, rooming house, town house and condominium. 

 

6.05 Every contractor authorized by the District Board to collect solid waste shall display his firm name and 

telephone number in legible letters not less than three inches in height on both sides of all trucks used to collect and 

transport refuse. 

 

6.06  Every owner, lessee, tenant or occupant of commercial or commercial property, or other person/entity as 

determined by the hauler to be conducting business-like activity, shall remove, or cause to be removed, all solid waste 

created, produced or brought upon the premises according to the schedule by subscribing to the solid waste collection 

service of the District or the contractor authorized by the District Board to provide such service to that property; 

provided, however, one may provide one's own service pursuant to a self-hauler permit as provided in this policy for 

the removal of solid waste created by one's own activity as a commercial or commercial occupant, but not as a landlord 

for one's tenant or lessee.  

 

6.07 Trucks used in the collection of rubbish shall have solid construction of the floor and body and shall be 

equipped with a close-fitting covering which shall be affixed in a manner that will prevent the dropping or blowing of 

any rubbish upon the highway during collection and transportation. 

 

6.08 All trucks used in the collection and transportation of solid waste and rubbish shall be maintained in a clean, 

sanitary and neatly painted condition, and shall carry a shovel, broom, first-aid kit and fire extinguisher. 



28 
 

 

SECTION 7.  REQUIREMENTS FOR SELF-HAULERS  

 

7.01  Only occupants of commercial property located outside the Haulerôs collection boundaries shall be allowed 

to self-haul and must obtain and maintain in full force and effect a self-hauler permit and shall provide solid waste 

removal service in accordance with said self -hauler permit. 

 

7.02  Application for self-hauler permits shall be made to the General Manager, or designee, and shall be 

accompanied by a nonrefundable fee set by resolution. 

 

7.03 The General Manager, or designee, shall issue the permit upon determining that the applicant is able to 

transport all solid waste in a safe and sanitary manner in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

 

7.04 Such permit shall be effective for one year from the date of its issue. 

 

7.05 If the application is denied by the General Manager, or designee, the applicant shall be provided with a full 

statement of the reasons for the denial. 

 

7.06 A permit may be revoked by the General Manager, or designee, for any violation of law or for failure to 

comply with the provisions of this policy by providing the permittee with a written statement of the violations noted. 

 

7.07 A denial or revocation may be appealed to the Districtôs Board of Directors whose decision shall be final. 

Such appeal shall be filed with the District Clerk within ten days after the receipt of the General Manager's written 

notice of denial or revocation. 

 

7.08 All solid waste removal pursuant to a valid self-hauler's permit shall be accomplished by the permit holder 

or the holder's own employees using the permittee's own equipment. 

 

7.09 All solid waste removed pursuant to a self-hauler permit shall be deposited only at authorized and licensed 

solid waste disposal sites. 

 

7.10 All equipment used by a self-hauler's permittee to remove solid waste shall comply with the requirements of 

Section 8 of this Ordinance. 

 

7.11 Every holder of a self-hauler permit shall submit legible copies of landfill receipts to the General Manager, 

or designee, on or before the tenth of each month for solid waste deposits made during the previous month at authorized 

and licensed solid waste disposal sites. 

 

7.12 All self-haulers must dispose of their solid waste a minimum of one time per week. 

 

SECTION 8.  VEHICLE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONVEYANCE OF SOLID WASTE 

 

8.01 Commercial motor vehicles shall not be used in the transportation of solid waste upon or along any public 

street or highway of the District; provided, however, commercial self-haulers as provided in Section 7 of this 

Ordinance may utilize such vehicles upon the condition that the solid waste is so contained as to prevent it from 

leaking, dripping, falling, blowing or scattering from the vehicle in which it is being conveyed or transported. 

 

8.02 Trucks used in the collection and transportation of solid waste shall have bodies of watertight metal 

construction which shall be leak proof and shall be equipped with a close-fitting cover, which shall be affixed in a 

manner that will prevent dropping, spilling or other loss of solid waste upon the highway during collection and 

transportation.  In lieu of such watertight bodies and covers, separate metal containers with tight-fitting, clamp-on lids 

may be used. 
 

SECTION 9.  COLLECTION PERIODS 
 

9.01 Solid waste collection from commercial properties shall be provided by all haulers a minimum of once a 

week. 



29 
 

 

9.02 Contractors shall provide collection service to all commercial premises at least once a week; provided, 

however, collection must be made at least twice a week to those establishments generating garbage; and further 

provided that nothing in this subsection shall prohibit the contractor from collecting solid waste at a more frequent 

rate. 

 

9.03 Solid waste will not be collected on Sundays except in emergencies and as approved by the General Manager 

or hauler. 

 

SECTION 10.  PROHIBTION AGAINST SCAVENGING 

 

10.01 It shall be unlawful for any person other than the owner or agent or employee of the owner of a solid waste 

or recyclable material detachable bin, a solid waste hauler or the person or agent or employee of the person for whom 

a solid waste or recyclable material detachable bin is contracted or placed to collect refuse or recyclable material to 

rummage in, disturb, interfere, scavenge, or remove refuse or recyclable material from officially designated refuse 

and recyclable containers 

 

SECTION 11.  DUMPING, PLACING, BURNING AND BURIAL RESTRICTIONS 

 

11.01 No person shall throw, drop, leave, dump, bury, burn, place, keep, accumulate or otherwise dispose of any 

waste matter, including but not limited to garbage, hazardous waste, refuse, recyclable materials, rubbish, or solid 

waste as defined in Section 2 of this Ordinance upon any lot, land, street, alley, water or waterway, either with or 

without intent to later remove same. 

 

11.02 Solid waste may not be buried on any lot in the District.  This Section shall not be interpreted to prohibit 

composting of yard waste.  

 

SECTION 12.  UNSIGHTLY SOLID WASTE DEEMED NUISANCE 

 

12.01 Solid waste, which by reason of its location and character is unsightly and interferes with the reasonable 

enjoyment of property by neighbors, is a public nuisance within the meaning and subject to the provisions of this 

policy. 
 

SECTION 13.  PROPERTY OWNER ALLEY CLEARANCE DUTIES 
 

13.01 No person owning, leasing or occupying property adjoining any public alley in the District shall fail, refuse 

or neglect to keep that portion of such alley between the centerline thereof and the property line of such property free 

from solid waste. 
 

SECTION 14.  ACCUMULATION OF WASTE MATTER RESTRICTED 
 

14.01 No person owning or occupying any building, lot or premises in the District shall suffer, allow or permit to 

collect and remain upon such lot or premises any solid waste; provided, however, that this provision shall not be 

construed as interfering with building under a building permit, or wood neatly piled for kitchen or household use.  
 

SECTION 15.  RESTRAINT OF ANIMALS TO PROTECT COLLECTORS 
 

15.01 Any occupant owning or possessing an animal on the premises which may bite or attempt to bite a solid 

waste hauler while engaged in collecting refuse shall be required to secure the animal(s) or place the Detachable bin 

in such manner that such animal shall not constitute a hazard or to endanger a solid waste hauler. In addition to any 

criminal penalties specified in this code, failure to adhere to the requirements of this section shall be cause for 

suspension of collection service during such time as there exists any such danger or hazard. Suspension of service 

pursuant to this section shall not relieve any person or firm of the duty to pay solid waste collection charges during 

such period of suspension.  

SECTION 16.  REGULATION-MAKING POWERS 
 

16.01 The Board of Directors is authorized to make such rules and regulations not inconsistent with the provisions 

of this policy so as to effect efficient collection and removal of waste material by the District or its duly authorized 

contractors. SECTION 17.  COLLECTION AREAS 



30 
 

 

17.01 A mandatory collection area located within the boundaries of the District, as presently constituted at time of 

Ordinance passage, and as amended in the future by LAFCO, is established and shall consist of: 

 

17.01.01 All multi -family units of five (5) or more. 

 

17.01.02 All developed properties classified as industrial or commercial. 

 

17.01.03 All institutional entities, such as schools and government buildings. 

 

17.02 Other mandatory collection areas may be established by Ordinance by the District as found to be necessary 

for the public health and welfare or required to implement state laws. 

 

SECTION 18.  COLLECTION CHARGES 

 

18.01 The District Board shall by separate resolution fix and, from time-to-time, amend the various charges related 

to solid waste collection. 

 

SECTION 19.  LIABILITY FOR PAYMENT OF FEES MANDATORY COLLECTION 

 

19.01 Each owner, occupant or person in possession, charge or control of any collection premises located in a 

mandatory collection area is hereby made liable jointly and severally for the payment of the solid waste collection, 

processing and disposal fees levied against such premises for required solid waste collection, processing and disposal 

services, irrespective of the actual use of the service provided by the District or grantee. Services made available to 

those premises required to receive such service shall be considered as services utilized. It shall be the primary duty of 

the owner of such premises to provide for the payment of the services.  

 

SECTION 20.  BILLING CYCLE AND PENALTY FOR DELINQUENT PAYMENTS 

 

20.01 Solid waste collection fees may be billed and paid in advance on a monthly basis. Payment shall be due upon, 

and shall become delinquent fifteen (15) days after the date of any billing.  A finance charge and late payment penalty 

as permitted by law shall be added at the end of each month following the delinquency date.  

 

SECTION 21.  DISCONTINUATION OF SERVICES 

 

21.01 The District or hauler may discontinue service for any customer whose account remains unpaid for sixty (60) 

days after the date of billing as long as the customer has received a notice on a form approved by the General Manager 

or designee stating that service will be discontinued fifteen (15) days from the date of the notice if payment is not 

made by that time. Upon payment of the delinquent fees, collection shall resume on the next regularly scheduled 

collection day.  Fees shall be continued to be assessed and billed notwithstanding that service has been discontinued 

and notice of same shall be included in the form sent to the customer.  
 

SECTION 22.  FEE A CIVIL DEBT 
 

22.01 The fees levied for service for solid waste collection shall constitute a civil debt and liability owing to the 

District and/or any grantee from the person using or chargeable for such services and shall be collectible in the same 

manner provided by law.  

SECTION 23.  LIEN FOR NINETY (90) DAY DELINQUENCIES 

 

  23.01 Mandatory collection fees authorized pursuant to this article which remain unpaid for a period of ninety (90) 

or more days after the date upon which they were billed may be collected thereafter by the District as provided herein. 

 

23.02 Once a year, the Board of Directors shall cause to be prepared a report of delinquent fees.  The Board shall 

fix a time, date and place for hearing the report and any objections or protests thereto.  

 

23.03 The Board shall cause notice of the hearing to be mailed to the landowners listed on the report not less than 

ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing.  



31 
 

23.04 At the hearing, the Board shall hear any objections or protests of landowners liable to be assessed for 

delinquent fees. The Board may make such revisions or corrections to the report as it deems just, after which by 

resolution, the report shall be confirmed.  

 

23.05  The delinquent fees set forth in the report as confirmed shall constitute special assessments against the 

respective parcels of land and are a lien on the property for the amount of such delinquent fees.  A certified copy of 

the confirmed report shall be filed with the county auditor, on or before August 10, for the amounts of the respective 

assessments against the respective parcels of land as they appear on the current assessment roll.  The lien created 

attaches upon recordation, in the office of the county recorder of the county in which the property is situated, of a 

certified copy of the resolution of confirmation.  The assessment may be collected at the same time and in the same 

manner as ordinary county ad valorem property taxes are collected and shall be subject to the same penalties and the 

same procedure and sale in case of delinquency as provided for such taxes.  All laws applicable to the levy, collection 

and enforcement of county ad valorem property taxes shall be applicable to such assessment, except that if any real 

property to which such lien would attach has been transferred or conveyed to a Bonafede purchaser for value, or if a 

lien of a bona fide encumbrance for value has been created and attaches thereon, prior to the date on which the first 

installment of such taxes would become delinquent, then the lien which would otherwise be imposed by this section 

shall not attach to such real property and the delinquency fees, as confirmed, relating to such property shall be 

transferred to the unsecured roll for collection.  

 

SECTION 24.  INSPECTION OF PREMISES ï POLICY ENFORCEMENT 

 

24.01 The duly authorized representative of the District shall visit all commercial premises within the District from 

time to time to examine the sanitary conditions of the premises to determine whether the provisions of this policy and 

state laws are being complied with.  The General Manager, or designee, shall enforce the provisions of this policy and 

properly notify any owner or occupant of any violations of this policy.  Such notice whenever possible shall be affixed 

to a detachable bin and/or delivered in person 

 

SECTION 25.  ALTERNATE ENFORCEMENT 

 

25.01 Notwithstanding the provisions of this policy prescribing specified action in the event of a violation, any 

other appropriate criminal or civil action may be maintained against the violation and against any person maintaining 

or permitting the violation. 
 

SECTION 26.  APPEALS 
 

26.01 A business who desires to appeal the notice set forth in this Ordinance may appeal to the Board of Directors 

within the twenty (20) calendar days of the post-mark of the Warning Notice by filing a timely written appeal with 

the General Manager.  Timely appeal shall not stay any further solid waste collection or responsibility to pay therefore.  

The General Manager shall set the matter for hearing before the Board of Directors and shall notify the Appellant by 

mail of the date set for such hearing, at least fifteen (15) days prior to said date.  If the Appellant resides outside the 

District, the above period of notice by mail before the hearing shall be at least twenty-five (25) days.  The Appellant 

shall have the right to appear in person or by an agent, designated in writing, at the hearing, and present oral, and/or 

written, evidence.  The Board of Directors shall decide the appeal and shall issue its decision, which shall be in writing 

and be legally binding. 

26.02 The Board of Directors shall have authority to make reasonable adjustments in the amount billed or to excuse 

payment altogether as well as authority to grant ancillary relief.  The Board of Directors shall have authority to 

determine that the Hauler shall not be entitled to any payment from the business owner affected.  The Board of 

Directors shall have no authority to award monetary damages, costs or attorneyôs fees. 
 

SECTION 27.  PENALTIES 

27.01 It shall constitute an infraction for an owner as defined above to fail to sign up for or to timely pay for solid 

waste & recycling collection service or to otherwise violate any provision of this ordinance and upon conviction of 

such violation shall be subject to a fine of $250.00 for the first offense; $500.00 for a second violation within a one 

(1) year period and $1,000.00 for a third or subsequent violation within a one (1) year period.  The additional remedies, 

penalties and procedures for violations and for recovery of costs related to enforcement provided for in this Ordinance 

are incorporated herein by this reference.  The owner shall also be subject to court action to pay for solid waste 

collection service furnished to the business located thereon. 



32 
 

SECTION 28.  SEVERABILITY 
 

28.01  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this policy is for any reason held to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portions of this policy. The District Board declares that it would have passed this policy and each section, 

subsection, clause or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more other sections, subsections, clauses or 

phrases may be declared invalid or unconstitutional.  
 

SECTION 29.  PUBLICATION AND POSTING 
 

29.01 The Secretary of the Board is hereby directed to cause a summary of this Ordinance to be published at least 

five (5) days prior to the date of adoption hereof in a newspaper of general circulation printed and a copy of the full 

text must be posted at the District office at least five (5) days prior to the meeting.  The full text of this Ordinance 

must be published within ten (10) days after adoption with the names of the directors voting for and against the 

adoption and must likewise be posted at the District office. 
 

SECTION 30.  EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

30.01 This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its adoption. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of April  2019. 

 

_____________________________ 

President of the Wrightwood 

Community Services District and  

of the Board of Directors thereof.  
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA     
 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO  

 

I, ___________________, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Wrightwood Community Services District, do 

hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance, being Ordinance No. 2019-0_ was duly adopted by the Board of Directors 

of said District at a regular meeting of said Board held on April 2, 2019, and that it was so adopted by the following 

vote: 

 

AYES:   

NOES:     

ABSENT:  

ATTEST: 

  

_______________________________________ 

Secretary of the Wrightwood  

             Community Services District and 

             of the Board of Directors thereof. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



33 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-02 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE 

WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

ESTABLISHING A COMMERCIAL RECYCLING PROGRAM 

 

 

WHEREAS, Condition No. 6 of Resolution No. 3245 of the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of 

San Bernardino County (ñLAFCOò) authorizes the Wrightwood Community Services District (ñDistrictò) to collect, 

transfer, and dispose of solid waste and to provide solid waste handling services, including but not limited to source 

reduction, recycling, composting activities, pursuant to Division 30 (commencing with Section 40000), and consistent 

with Section 41821.2 of the Public Resources Code within the boundaries of the ; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Districtôs Board of Directors (ñBoardò) is required to comply with state recycling law, the California 

Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (also known as AB 939 and found at Public Resources Code Section 40000 

et seq.), including the requirement that each city and county in California divert 50 percent, or the maximum amount 

feasible, of recyclable materials from landfills. 

 

WHEREAS, such wastes are creating conditions which threaten the public health, safety, and well-being by potentially 

contributing to air, water, land pollution, and the general deterioration of the environment; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Wrightwood Community Services District 

as follows: 

 

SECTION 1. TABLE OF CONTENTS  

   Page 

Section 1  Table of Contents                                                                                                              1-2 

Section 2  Purpose, Intent and Findings                                                                                            2-3 

Section 3  Definitions                                                                                                                        3-6 

Section 4  Business Recycling Requirements                                                                                   6-7 

Section 5  Franchised Haulers                                                                                                           7-11 

Section 6  Self-Recycling                                                                                                                11-12 

Section 7 

Section 8  Certification 

Ownership/Scavenging of Recyclable Materials                                                                                                          12 

                                                                                                                                                                                 12-13 

Section 9  Exemptions                                                                                                                    3-14 

Section 10  Other Actions and Remedies                                                                                            14 

Section 11  Forms, Regulations and Guidelines                                                                            14-15 

Section 12  Hauler Entitled to Payment for Services Rendered                                                          15 

Section 13 

Section 14 

Section 15 

Section 16  Location of Detachable Bin Requirements 

Collection Area 

Liability for Payment of Fees-Mandatory Collection 

Billing Cycle and Penalty for Delinquent Payments                                                                                                 15 

                                                                                                                                                                                 15-16 

                                                                                                                                                                                       16 

                                                                                                                                                                                       16 

Section 17  Discontinuation of Service                                                                                       16 

Section 18  Fee A Civil Debt                                                                                                                17 

Section 19  Lien for Ninety (90) Day Delinquencies                                                                            17 

Section 20  Appeals                                                                                                                              18 

Section 21  Penalties                                                                                                                             18 

Section 22  Disclaimer of Liability                                                                                                 18-19 

Section 23  Duties are Discretionary                                                                                                    19 



34 
 

Section 24  Severability                                                                                                                      19 

Section 25  Publication and Posting                                                                                                   19 

Section 26  Effective Date                                                                                                                  19 

Index    

 

SECTION 2.  PURPOSE, INTENT AND FINDINGS 

 

2.01 The District is a public agency created under the Community Services District Law, California Government 

Code Section 61000 et seq.  California Government Code, Sections 25827 and 25828 authorize the comprehensive 

collection of solid waste in unincorporated areas and require payment therefore by those persons and properties 

benefited thereby, to, among other purposes, promote recycling and diversion of solid waste from landfill by requiring 

businesses, non-residential properties, and commercial buildings to source separate recyclable materials form all other 

solid waste for recycling and diversion from landfill and provide for the collection of recyclable materials.  

 

2.02 Comply with state recycling law, the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (also known as 

AB 939 and found at Public Resources Code Section 40000 et seq.), including the requirement that each city and 

county in California divert 50 percent, or the maximum amount feasible, of recyclable materials from landfills. 

 

2.03 Establish requirements for recycling of recyclable materials generated by commercial facilities, properties 

and special events, in order to increase the diversion of recyclable and compostable materials from landfill disposal, 

thus reducing greenhouse emissions, minimizing waste and helping to ensure the maintenance, restoration, 

enhancement, and protection of the environment, including natural resources. 

 

2.04 Provide an enforcement mechanism to ensure that business, commercial, non-residential properties, and 

multifamily dwellings provide for the proper collection of recyclable materials and provide protections against illegal 

scavenging of materials. 

 

2.05 Provide an exemption for generators who self-haul, donate or sell their recyclables, as well as provide an 

exemption process for those businesses that have major site constraints or generate a minimum level of material. 

 

2.06 The District continues to make progress in maintaining the disposal reduction requirements of the state 

recycling law, but additional efforts, particularly in the recycling of plastic, paper, cardboard, glass, and other 

recyclable materials generated by businesses, will assist the District in maintaining and exceeding the goal of diverting 

waste from landfill disposal. 

 

2.07 Efforts by the District and the private sector to encourage voluntary diversion of commercial and special 

event recyclable materials have not achieved desired levels of diversion. Additional efforts are necessary to ensure 

continued compliance with the requirements of the state recycling law and to ensure maximum recovery of valuable 

resources. 

 

2.08 In adopting this Ordinance, the District agrees to be subject to the terms of this Ordinance for all of the 

Districtôs non-residential facilities and properties, including parks and District buildings, as well as District sponsored 

or partnered special events. 

 

2.09 This Ordinance requires diversion of District identified recyclable materials by businesses, commercial 

facilities, commercial properties, and multi-family dwelling units. 

 

SECTION 3.  DEFINITIONS 

. 

3.01 Business - means any commercial entity, public entity, or other entity as determined by the hauler, that 

generates commercial solid waste including, but not limited to: a firm, partnership, proprietorship, joint-stock 

company, corporation or association that is organized as a for-profit or nonprofit entity, strip mall, (e.g. property 

complex containing two or more commercial entities), industrial facility, school, school district, special district or a 

federal, state, local, regional agency or facility.  For the purposes of this Ordinance, ñbusinessò also includes 

multifamily residential dwellings. 

 



35 
 

3.02 Collect or Collection - means to take physical possession of and remove Recyclable Materials at the place of 

generation. 

 

3.03 Commercial Solid Waste - means all putrescible and non-putrescible solid, semisolid and liquid wastes, 

including garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes, 

abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated or chemically 

fixed sewage sludge which is not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes, and other 

discarded solid and semisolid wastes.  Solid waste does not include hazardous waste.  Solid waste does include 

recyclable material.  Solid waste includes dirt, soil, rock, decomposed rock, gravel, sand, or other aggregate material. 

 

3.04 Compost - is defined in state law (Public Resources Code Section 40116) as the product resulting from the 

controlled biological decomposition of organic wastes that are Source Separated from the municipal waste stream, or 

which are separated at a centralized facility. 

 

3.05 Compostable Material - means green waste and other material that can be broken down into, or otherwise 

become part of, usable Compost in a safe and timely manner, such as for use as soil-conditioning material.  

Compostable Material also includes waste such as food scraps, soiled paper and plant trimmings.  Compostable 

Material (California Public Resources Code Section 40116) includes vegetable, yard and wood wastes which are not 

hazardous waste. 

 

3.06 Contamination - means placement of, with the intent to discard, inappropriate Solid Waste materials in a 

container designated for Recyclable Materials or Compostable Materials. 

 

3.07 Customer - means a Generator that arranges or subscribes for Solid Waste removal services and/or Recycling 

services with a Franchised Hauler.  In the event Businesses share Solid Waste or Recycling containers and/or service, 

Customer refers only to the entity that arranges for the service.  

 

3.08 Detachable Bin - means a container provided by the hauler and designed for mechanical emptying and 

provided by the District or contractor where applicable for the accumulation and storage of recyclable materials. 

 

3.09 Disposal - means the final disposition of Solid Waste at a permitted solid waste disposal facility, as defined 

in California Public Resources Code Section 40192. 

 

3.10 Diversion or Divert - means the reduction or elimination of Solid Waste from solid waste disposal in 

accordance with California Public Resources Code Section 41024. 

 

3.11 Force Majeure - means the inability of a party to provide the services or perform the obligations required 

under this Agreement due to causes beyond their reasonable control including, but not limited to, compliance with 

any Government law or regulation, acts of God, fires, strikes, lockouts, national disasters, wars, riots, transportation 

problems and/or any other cause whatsoever beyond the reasonable control of the parties, provided that the party has 

prudently and promptly acted to take any and all steps that are within the partôs control to ensure performance.  

Excessive levels of Contamination (greater than 20% Solid Waste) shall not be considered grounds for Force Majeure. 

 

3.12 Franchised Hauler - means a Hauler holding a franchise, contract, license or permit issued by the District and 

provides Solid Waste handling services as authorized under Exclusive Franchise Agreement between the District and 

CR&R entered into on July 1, 2017.  

 

3.13 General Manager - means the General Manager of the District, including his or her designee. 

 

3.14 Generator - means an owner of a Commercial Facility(ies) or Business, as defined in this section, which 

generates Solid Waste including Recyclable Materials or Compostable Materials.  Generator includes tenants, property 

managers for facilities with leased space, employees and contractors of a Generator, if applicable. 

 

3.15 Hauler/Contractor - means any person or commercial entity which lawfully collects, hauls or transports Solid 

Waste by use of any means including, but not limited to, a dumpster truck, roll-off truck, side-load, front-load, rear-

load garbage truck or a trailer. 



36 
 

3.16 Multifamily Residential Property - means any multifamily dwelling, building or group of buildings that 

contain(s) five or more individual dwelling units on a single parcel.  Multifamily complexes include, but are not 

limited to, apartment complexes, mobile home parks, senior housing/care facilities and condominium complexes.  

 

3.17 Mixed Waste Processing - means processing Solid Waste that contains Recyclable and/or Compostable 

Materials and Trash. 

 

3.18 Recycle or Recycling - means the process of collecting, sorting, cleansing, treating and reconstituting 

materials that would otherwise be disposed of as Solid Waste and returning them for use or reuse in the form of raw 

materials for new, used or reconstituted products which meet the quality standard necessary to be used in the market 

place as defined in Public Resources Code Section 40180. 

 

3.19 Recyclable Materials - means materials that have been separated from the solid waste stream prior to disposal 

and returning them for use or reuse in the form of raw materials for new, used or reconstituted products, which meet 

the quality standard necessary to be used in the market place and that are not landfilled.  Recyclable Materials include 

any materials identified by the General Manager for which a market exists including, but not limited to: plastic bottles 

and jars, aluminum and bi-metal (tin) cans, paper, cardboard, glass, newspaper, metal and wood. 

 

3.20 Scavenging or Scavenger - means the uncontrolled and unauthorized removal of Recyclable Materials at any 

point in the Solid Waste management system. 

 

3.21 Self Recycler - means a Generator that accomplishes Recycling activities and/or participates in Recycling 

programs without utilizing a Franchised Hauler and without violating the provisions of Exclusive Franchise 

Agreement between the District and the Franchised Hauler. 

 

3.22 Solid Waste - means all putrescible and non-putrescible solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including 

garbage, trash, refuse, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes, abandoned 

vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated or chemically fixed sewage 

sludge which is not hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes, and other discarded 

solid and semisolid material.  Solid waste includes dirt, soil, rock, decomposed rock, gravel, sand, or other aggregate 

material.  

 

3.23 Source Separated or Source Separation - means the process of removing Recyclable Materials and/or 

Compostable Materials from Solid Waste at the place of discard generation, prior to collection, into separate containers 

that are separately designated for Recyclable Materials or Compostable Materials for the purposes of Recycling. 

 

3.24 Source Separated Recycling Facility - means a Recycling, material recovery or re-use facility that is fully 

licensed, certified and eligible under federal, state and local laws and regulations, and includes those material recovery 

or reuse facilities or operations that receive, process and transfer to market Recyclable and/or Compostable Materials 

that have been Source Separated from the Solid Waste stream.  The Recycling Facility may be located at a Landfill.  

Source Separated Recycling Facility also means a facility that produces Compost. 

 

3.25 Trash - means Solid Waste which is discarded separately from Recyclable Materials and/or Compostable 

Materials. 

 

SECTION 4.  BUSINESS RECYCLING REQUIREMENTS 

 

4.01 Each Generator shall be responsible for ensuring and demonstrating its compliance with the requirements of 

this Ordinance.  Each Generator shall: 

 

4.01.01 Subscribe to a Source Separated Recycling Service with the Franchised Hauler authorized to provide service 

for the area in which the Business is located; or 

 

      4.01.02 Subscribe to a Solid Waste and Recycling Service with a Franchised Hauler authorized to provide 

service for the area in which the Business is located, that may include Mixed Waste Processing that yields diversion 

results comparable to Source Separation; or  



37 
 

           4.01.03 Self-Recycle and annually certify compliance with this Ordinance, and complete and retain on-site 

a Self-Recycling Log verifying Recycling activities; or 

 

      4.01.04  Comply under the conditions of an approved exemption. 

4.02 Each Generator shall use, and maintain in good order, containers provided by the Hauler to collect and store 

Recyclable Materials and shall designate areas to collect and/or store Recyclable Materials, unless Recycling service 

is provided through a Mixed Waste Processing Facility. 

 

4.03 Each Generator shall place all Recyclable Materials for collection in containers with a lid and conforming to 

the following requirements, unless Recycling service is provided through a Mixed Waste Processing Facility.  No 

container shall be loaded beyond its capacity.  It shall be the Generatorôs responsibility to keep the containers used for 

the storage and collection of Recyclable Material generated on the premises in a clean and sanitary condition.  No 

material or containers shall be kept or handled in such a manner as to become a nuisance.  No Recyclable Material 

shall be allowed to become odoriferous or a producer of vermin.  Lids on containers shall remain closed at all times 

while stored or placed for Collection. 

 

SECTION 5.  FRANCHISED HAULERS 

 

5.01 General Requirements for Franchised Haulers providing Source Separated Recycling Services: 

 

5.01.01 Franchised Haulers shall offer Collection service and containers for Recyclable Materials sufficient to 

accommodate the quantity and types of Recyclable Materials to all of its Customers and shall provide Recycling 

Services as described in this Section of this Ordinance. 

 

5.01.02 Franchised Haulers shall identify containers for Recyclable Materials with their name, recognizable corporate 

or company logo, and phone number of the Franchised Hauler that is legible form a distance of 50 feet. 

 

5.01.03 Franchised Haulers shall equip and provide containers for Recyclable Materials, with locks and/or other 

suitable features, where feasible and when necessary, to prevent Scavenging.  They shall conduct all activities in 

accordance with applicable laws, County codes and regulations, and best management practices. 

 

5.01.04 Franchised Haulers shall not take a Customerôs Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a Landfill or other 

site for Disposal.  Such materials shall be taken to a Recycling Facility or Franchised Haulers shall make other 

arrangements for recycling the materials instead of Disposal.  The Franchised Haulers shall maintain receipts 

documenting that the Generatorôs Recyclable Materials have been properly delivered, as well as any documentation 

evidencing an event of Force Majeure which prevented the proper Collection and/or delivery of Recyclable Materials.  

 

5.01.05  A Franchised Hauler may charge a penalty fee to a Customer when Recyclable Materials are not adequately 

Source Separated from Solid Waste.  Adequate Source Separation is twenty percent (20%) Contamination or less.  A 

penalty fee may only be charged after meeting the following requirements: 

 

5.01.05.01 The Franchised Hauler shall notify the Customer of noncompliance in writing twice, explaining the reason 

for noncompliance and explaining how the Customer may comply; and 

 

5.01.05.02 The Franchised Hauler shall make at least one visit to the Customerôs place of Business to show the 

Customer how to comply; and 
 

5.01.05.03 The Franchised Hauler shall notify the Districtôs General Manager, or designee, in writing on non-

compliance, documenting non-compliance and the steps taken above. 
 

5.01.06 The Franchised Hauler shall only charge a penalty fee in the amount approved by the General Manager, or 

designee. 
 

5.01.07 A Franchised Hauler may cancel Recycling service when Recyclable  Materials continue to not be 

adequately Source Separated from Solid Waste, as defined above, only after assessment of at least two penalties 

 by the Franchised Hauler, and shall notify the Districtôs General Manager, or designee. 

 



38 
 

5.02 Source Separated Recycling Services provided by Franchised Haulers, shall include, at a minimum, the  

following: 

 

5.02.01 Bi-weekly collection of non-Compostable Source Separated Recyclable Materials or as approved by the 

General Manager; 

 

5.02.02 Collection of Compostable Source Separated Recyclable Materials at a  minimum of one time per week or 

more often, as approved by the General Manager, if applicable; 

 

5.02.03 Utilization of Recycling receptacles which comply with Districtôs standards. 

 

5.02.04 Appropriate signage on all Recycling receptacles, containers, chutes and/or enclosures which allow users to 

clearly and easily identify which containers to use for Recyclable Materials, Compostable Materials or Trash. 

 

05.03 Reporting.  Franchised Haulers providing Source Separated Recycling services shall provide quarterly 

reports on the dates and in the format prescribed by the General Manager, such reporting may include, but is not 

necessarily limited to: 

 

 5.03.01 A list of Customers they have in the approved franchise area; the name,    

 address and account number of the facility serviced; and the name of the    

 Generator and/or Customer for Solid Waste and/or Recyclable Materials    

 management; 

  

 5.03.02 The volume per month of trash collection service provided to the Business,   

 Commercial Facility or property; 

 

 5.03.03 The cumulative volume, calendar year-to-date, of trash collection service    

 provided to the Business, Commercial Facility or property; 

 

5.03.04 The volume per month of non-Compostable Source Separated Recyclable Materials collection service 

provided to the Business, Commercial Facility or property; 

 

5.03.05 The cumulative volume, calendar year-to-date, of non-Compostable Recyclable Materials collection service 

provided to the Business, Commercial Facility or property; 

 

5.03.06 The volume per month of Compostable Recyclable Materials collection service provided to the Business, 

Commercial Facility or property; 

 

5.03.07 The cumulative volume, calendar year-to-date, of Compostable Recyclable Materials collection service 

provided to the Business, Commercial Facility or property; 

 

5.03.08 The total volume per month of combined refuse collection and Recycling collection service provided to the 

Business, Commercial Facility or property; 

 

5.03.09 The cumulative volume, calendar year-to-date, or combined refuse collection and Recycling collection 

service provided to the Business, Commercial Facility or property; 
 

5.03.10 The location of the Source Separated Recycling Facility(ies) to which the Source Separated Recyclable 

Materials were taken during the previous quarter, including the tonnage of Source Separated Recyclable Materials 

delivered to such facility each month; and 
 

5.03.11 Information about changes in Recycling such as new customers or cancellations, including business name 

and address. 

5.03.12 The initial quarterly reporting periods shall be as follows: 

 

 

 



39 
 

Reporting Period Due Date 

January 1 ï March 31                    May 1 

April 1 ï June 30                   August 1 

July 1 ï September 30                   November 1 

October 1 ï December 31    February 1 

 

5.04 General Requirements for Franchised Haulers providing Mixed Waste Recycling Services: 

 

  5.04.01 Franchised Haulers shall offer Collection service and containers as    

                described in their respective individual Franchise Hauler Agreement. 

 

                              

5.05 Reporting. Franchised Haulers providing mixed waste Recycling services shall provide quarterly 

reports on the dates and in the format prescribed by the General Manager, such reporting may include, but is not 

necessarily limited to: 

 

  5.04.01 A list of Customers they have in the approved franchise area; the name,   

   address and account number of the Business serviced; and the name of the   

  Generator and/or Customer for Solid Waste management; 

 

  5.04.02 The volume per month of mixed waste Collection service provided to the   

   Business, Commercial Facility or property; 

 

  5.04.03 The cumulative volume, calendar year to date, of mixed waste Collection   

   service provided to the Business, Commercial Facility or property; 

  

  5.04.04 The location of the Mixed Waste Recycling Facility(ies) to which the mixed   

  waste was taken for processing during the previous quarter; and 

 

  5.04.05 Information about changes in service such as new Customers or    

   cancellations including Business name and address. 

 

  5.04.06 The initial quarterly reporting periods shall be as follows: 

 

Reporting Period Due Date 

January 1 ï March 31           May 1 

April 1 ï June 30                          August 1 

July 1 ï September 30           November 1 

October 1 ï December 31           February 1 

 

SECTION 6.  SELF RECYCLING 

 

6.01 Nothing in this Ordinance shall preclude any Generator from Self-Recycling Recyclable Materials generated 

at a place of Business or Multi-Family Residential Property.  A Self-Recycler must accomplish Recycling activities 

and/or participate in Recycling programs, certify compliance with this Ordinance as prescribed by the General 

Manager, and complete and retain on-site a Self-Recycling Log listing materials and the volume or weight of material 

Recycled.  The Self Recycling Log shall be made available to the General Manager or General Managerôs designee 

upon request. At a minimum, the Generator shall provide the following information on the Self-Recycling Log: 

 

6.01.01 The name, address and telephone number of the Generatorôs representative responsible for certification. 

 

 6.01.02 For Source Separated Recycling, a list of the types of Recyclable     

 Materials generated and managed. 
 

 6.01.03 For Mixed Waste Processing, the amount of volume or weight of Solid    

 Waste delivered to a Mixed Waste Processing Facility.  
 



40 
 

 6.01.04 The name and address of the Recycling Facility or Mixed Waste Recycling    

 Facility used. 

 

 6.01.05The Generator shall maintain receipts supporting information provided on the Districtôs Self-

Recycling Log and documenting that the Generatorôs Recyclable Materials have been properly delivered, as well as 

any documentation evidencing an event which prevented the proper delivery of Recyclable Materials.  Such 

documents shall be provided to the District within ten (10) days of a request by the General Manager, or designee. 

Additionally, these documents will be made available for inspection by the General Manager, or designee, at the place 

of business during normal business hours and maintained for not less than three years. 

 

6.02 The General Manager may restrict or prohibit Self-Recycling by a Generator if the General Manager 

determines, after providing notice and an opportunity for a hearing, that the Generatorôs Self Recycling activities 

violate the provisions of this Section or any other applicable law, ordinance or regulation. 

 

6.03 Sale or Contribution.  Nothing in this Ordinance shall preclude any Generator from selling or exchanging at 

fair market value, for reuse or Recycling, Source Separated Recyclable Materials generated from that Business, 

Commercial Facility or property in compliance with exclusive Franchise Agreement between the District and the 

Franchised Hauler. 

 

6.04 Donation or Gift.  Nothing in this Ordinance shall preclude any Generator from donating or gifting to a non-

profit agency, for reuse or Recycling, Source Separated Recyclable Materials generated from that Business, 

Commercial Facility or property in compliance with exclusive Franchise Agreement between the District and the 

Franchised Hauler.  Receipts for donated or gifted recyclables shall still be provided per Section 6.01.05. 

 

SECTION 7.  CERTIFICATION 

 

7.01 Any Business that does not subscribe to a Source Separated Recycling Service or Mixed Waste Processing 

Service with the designated Franchised Hauler, or has otherwise complied with the conditions of an approved 

exemption, shall certify annually by the method prescribed by the General Manager that the Business; (i) is exempt 

from the Recycling provisions of this Ordinance; or (ii) has documented the implementation of its Recycling activities 

and/or Recycling program participation. 

 

SECTION 8.  OWNERSHIP/SCAVENGING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIALS 

 

8.01 All Recyclable Materials placed in containers for Recyclable Materials provided by any Franchised Hauler 

shall be considered owned by and be the responsibility of the Franchised Hauler.  Without permission of the Franchised 

Hauler, no person shall collect Recyclable Materials placed in such containers by Customers or Generators. 

 

8.02 All Recyclable Materials placed in Recyclable Materials containers provided or owned by the Generator, 

shall be considered owned by and be the responsibility of that Generator until the material is placed at a Franchised 

Haulerôs designated point of Collection or in containers otherwise described in this Ordinance. 

 

8.03 No person other than the person, or Business designated by the Generator of the Recyclable Materials to 

collect the Recyclable Materials, shall remove or otherwise interfere with Recyclable Materials which have been 

placed at a designated Recycling or Recycling Materials collection location.  Except as authorized under exclusive 

Franchise Agreement between the District and Hauler, it shall be unlawful for any person to engage in the business of 

collecting, removing or transporting, or otherwise organizing or directing the collection, removal or transportation of 

Recyclable Materials without being a Franchised Hauler. 

 

SECTION 9.   EXEMPTIONS 

 

9.01 The following may be exempt from all or portions of the requirements of this Ordinance: 
 

9.01.01 Recyclable Materials Generators are not required to subscribe for Recycling services or Self-Recycle if the 

Generator certifies that there are no Recyclable Materials being generated by any activities in the Generatorôs 

Business, Commercial Facility or non-residential property. 
 



41 
 

9.01.02 Generator may not be required to subscribe for Recycling services or Self-Recycle if the Hauler determines 

after a site assessment that either: 

 

9.01.02.01 There is inadequate storage space for automatic lift containers, bins, or roll-off bins for Recyclable 

Materials on-site and that it is infeasible for the Generator to share automatic lift containers, bins or roll-off bins for 

Recyclable Materials with a Generator on an adjoining property; or 

 

9.01.01.02 Compliance with this Ordinance will result in a violation of county zoning ordinances or regulations 

for minimum parking spaces. 

  

9.01.03 However, if after a site assessment, the Franchised Hauler determines that it is feasible for Recycling 

containers to be placed either on-site or shared with an adjoining Business or property, then the Generator will not be 

exempted from these requirements and will be responsible for full compliance with this Ordinance. 

 

9.01.04 Remote Area:  Generators from a specific geographic area may not be required to comply with this Ordinance 

if the Franchised Hauler demonstrates, and the General Manager concurs, in writing, that a Source Separated 

Recycling Service is not economically feasible within a specific geographic area. 

 

9.01.05 Outside Approved Franchised Areas: Generators from all areas not included within the areas delineated as 

Franchised Areas on the Approved Boundary Map for the District, shall not be required to comply with this Ordinance. 

 

9.02 Exemption Application.  If the Generator or Franchised Hauler seeks an exemption, an application for such 

exemption shall be submitted in the form prescribed by the General Manager.  After reviewing the exemption request, 

and after an on-site review, if applicable, the General Manager shall either approve or disapprove the exemption 

request. 

 

9.03 Cancellation of Recycling Service by a Franchised Hauler is not an exemption under this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 10.  OTHER ACTIONS AND REMEDIES 

 

10.01 No Other Powers Affected - This Ordinance does not do any of the following: 

 

10.01.01 Otherwise affect the authority of the General Manager, or his/her designee, to take any other action authorized 

by any other provision of law. 

 

10.01.02 Restrict the power of a District Attorney or the Attorney General to bring in the name of the people of 

California, any criminal proceeding otherwise authorized by law. 

 

10.01.03 Affect in any way existing contractual arrangements, including franchises, permits or licenses, previously 

granted or entered into between the Franchised Hauler and County. 

  

10.02 Cumulative Remedies - Any remedy provided under this Ordinance is cumulative to any other remedy 

provided in equity or at law.  Nothing in this Ordinance shall be deemed to limit the right of the County or its authorized 

collection agent(s) to bring a civil action; nor shall a conviction for such violation exempt any person from a civil 

action brought by the County or its authorized collection agent(s).  The fees and penalties imposed under this 

Ordinance shall constitute a civil debt and liability owing to the County from the persons, firms or corporations using 

or chargeable for such services and shall be collectible in the manner provided by law. 

 

10.03 Liability - Nothing in this Ordinance shall be deemed to impose any liability upon the District or upon any 

of its officers or employees, including without limitation, under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 

Compensation and Liability act of 1980 (CERCLA). 

 

SECTION 11.  FORMS, REGULATIONS AND GUIDELINES 

 

11.01 The General Manager may adopt necessary forms, rules, regulations and guidelines which may be necessary 

or desirable to aid in the administration of the provisions of this Ordinance, including all necessary policies and 



42 
 

procedures for the issuance of the permits, administration of this Ordinance, collection of fees and bonds and/or 

indemnities, or proof(s) of insurance. 

 

SECTION 12.  HAULER ENTITLED TO PAYMENT FOR SERVICES RENDERED 

 

12.01 The Hauler shall be entitled to payment from the Owner for services rendered and in the amounts as specified 

in a Resolution or Resolutions adopted by the Board.  A failure to make timely payment for any service rendered by 

the Hauler shall constitute a violation of this ordinance and be subject to the penalty provisions herein included. 

 

SECTION 13.   LOCATION OF DETACHABLE BIN REQUIREMENTS 

 

13.01 At commercial properties serviced by the District, the detachable bin shall be placed as follows for collection: 

 

13.01.01 Customers adjoining an alley shall place their detachable bin adjacent to but not within the alley, unless 

otherwise approved by the Hauler.  

 

13.01.02 Customers may utilize one of established levels of collection service. Fees for different levels of service are 

set by resolution. In special circumstances, the General Manager or designee, may designate detachable bin location. 

 

 13.01.02.01 Curbside: Detachable bin shall be placed at the curbside, or equivalent, or adjacent to the 

alley before five-thirty a.m. on collection days. Sidewalks shall not be blocked. 

 

 13.01.02.02 Driveway: Detachable bin shall be placed adjacent to the driveway before five-thirty a.m. 

on collection days. Driveway clearance must be sufficient to accommodate collection equipment. 

 

13.01.03 Detachable bin located in a permanent enclosure shall be made accessible to the hauler at the designated 

collection time. This includes removing locks and clearing obstructions so collection vehicle can easily access 

detachable bin. 

 

SECTION 14.   COLLECTION AREA 

 

14.01 A mandatory collection area located within the boundaries of the District, as presently constituted at time of 

Ordinance passage, and as amended in the future by LAFCO, is established and shall consist of: 

 

14.01.01 All multi -family units of five (5) or more. 

 

14.01.02 All developed properties classified as industrial or commercial. 

 

14.01.03 All institutional entities, such as schools and government buildings. 

 

14.01.04 All other entities determined by the hauler to be businesses. 
 

14.02 Other mandatory collection areas may be established by Ordinance by the District as found to be necessary 

for the public health and welfare or required to implement state laws. 
 

SECTION 15.   LIABILITY FOR PAYMENT OF FEES MANDATORY COLLECTION 
 

15.01 Each owner, occupant or person in possession, charge or control of any collection premises located in a 

mandatory collection area is hereby made liable jointly and severely for the payment of the recycling collection, 

processing and disposal fees levied against such premises for required solid waste collection, processing and disposal 

services, irrespective of the actual use of the service provided by the district or grantee. Services made available to 

those premises required to receive such service shall be considered as services utilized. It shall be the primary duty of 

the owner of such premises to provide for the payment of the services.  

6 
 

SECTION 16.   BILLING CYCLE AND PENALTY FOR DELINQUENT PAYMENTS 
 

16.01 Solid waste collection fees may be billed and paid monthly.  Payment shall be due upon, and shall become 



43 
 

delinquent fifteen (15) days after the date of any billing.  A finance charge and late payment penalty as permitted by 

law shall be added at the end of each month following the delinquency date.  

SECTION 17.   DISCONTINUATION OF SERVICE 

 

17.01 The District or hauler may discontinue service for any customer whose account remains unpaid for sixty (60) 

days after the date of billing as long as the customer has received a notice on a form approved by the director of the 

county stating that service will be discontinued fifteen (15) days from the date of the notice if payment is not made by 

that time.  Upon payment of the delinquent fees, collection shall resume on the next regularly scheduled collection 

day.  Fees shall be continued to be assessed and billed notwithstanding that service has been discontinued and notice 

of same shall be included in the form sent to the customer. 

 

SECTION 18.   FEE A CIVIL DEBT 

 

18.01 The fees levied for service for solid waste and recyclables collection shall constitute a civil debt and liability 

owing to the District and/or any grantee from the person using or chargeable for such services and shall be collectible 

in the same manner provided by law. 

  

SECTION 9219.   LIEN FOR NINETY (90) DAY DELINQUENCIES 

 

19.01 Mandatory collection fees authorized pursuant to this Ordinance which remain unpaid for a period of ninety 

(90) or more days after the date upon which they were billed may be collected thereafter by the District as provided 

herein. 

  

19.02  Once a year, the Board of Directors shall cause to be prepared a report of delinquent fees. The Board shall 

fix a time, date and place for hearing the report and any objections or protests thereto.  

 

19.03 The board shall cause notice of the hearing to be mailed to the landowners listed on the report not less than 

ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing.  

 

19.04 At the hearing, the Board shall hear any objections or protests of landowners liable to be assessed for 

delinquent fees.  The Board may make such revisions or corrections to the report as it deems just, after which by 

resolution, the report shall be confirmed.  

 

19.05  The delinquent fees set forth in the report as confirmed shall constitute special assessments against the 

respective parcels of land and are a lien on the property for the amount of such delinquent fees.  A certified copy of 

the confirmed report shall be filed with the county tax assessor, on or before August 10, for the amounts of the 

respective assessments against the respective parcels of land as they appear on the current assessment roll.  The lien 

created attaches upon recordation, in the office of the county recorder of the county in which the property is situated, 

of a certified copy of the resolution of confirmation.  The assessment may be collected at the same time and in the 

same manner as ordinary county ad valorem property taxes are collected and shall be subject to the same penalties 

and the same procedure and sale in case of delinquency as provided for such taxes.  All laws applicable to the levy, 

collection and enforcement of county ad valorem property taxes shall be applicable to such assessment, except that if 

any real property to which such lien would attach has been transferred or conveyed to a Bonafede purchaser for value, 

or if a lien of a bona fide encumbrance for value has been created and attaches thereon, prior to the date on which the 

first installment of such taxes would become delinquent, then the lien which would otherwise be imposed by this 

section shall not attach to such real property and the delinquency fees, as confirmed, relating to such property shall be 

transferred to the unsecured roll for collection.  

 

SECTION 20.   APPEALS 

 

20.01 A business who desires to appeal the notice set forth in this Ordinance may appeal to the Board within the 

twenty (20) calendar days of the post-mark of the Warning Notice by filing a timely written appeal with the General 

Manager.  Timely appeal shall not stay any further solid waste collection or responsibility to pay therefore.  The 

General Manager shall set the matter for hearing before the Board and shall notify the Appellant by mail of the date 

set for such hearing, at least fifteen (15) days prior to said date.  If the Appellant resides outside the District, the above 

period of notice by mail before the hearing shall be at least twenty-five (25) days.  The Appellant shall have the right 



44 
 

to appear in person or by an agent, designated in writing, at the hearing, and present oral, and/or written, evidence.  

The Board shall decide the appeal and shall issue its decision, which shall be in writing. 

20.02 The Board shall have authority to make reasonable adjustments in the amount billed or to excuse payment 

altogether as well as authority to grant ancillary relief.  The Board shall have authority to determine that the Hauler 

shall not be entitled to any payment from the business owner affected.  The Board shall have no authority to award 

monetary damages, costs or attorneyôs fees.  The Owner or person affected may appeal the decision of the Board to 

the Board within thirty (30) days of the mailing of the written decision of the Board. 

 

SECTION 21.   PENALTIES 

 

21.01 It shall constitute an infraction for an owner as defined above to fail to sign up for or to timely pay for solid 

waste and recycling collection service or to otherwise violate any provision of this ordinance and upon conviction of 

such violation shall be subject to a fine of $250.00 for the first offense; $500.00 for a second violation within a one 

(1) year period and $1,000.00 for a third or subsequent violation within a one (1) year period.  The additional remedies, 

penalties and procedures for violations and for recovery of costs related to enforcement provided for in this Ordinance 

are incorporated herein by this reference.  The owner shall also be subject to court action to pay for solid waste 

collection service furnished to the business located thereon. 

 

SECTION 22.  DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY 

 

22.01 The degree of protection required by this Ordinance is considered to be reasonable for regulatory purposes.  

The standards set forth in this Ordinance are minimal standards and do not imply that compliance will ensure safe 

handling of Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials.  This Ordinance shall not create liability on the part of the District, 

or any of its officers or employees for any damages that result from reliance on this Ordinance or any administrative 

decision lawfully made in accordance with this Ordinance.  All persons handling discarded materials within the 

boundaries of the District should be and are advised to conduct their own inquiry as to the handling of such materials.  

In undertaking the implementation of this Ordinance, the District is assuming an undertaking only to promote the 

general welfare.  It is not assuming, nor is it imposing on its officers and employees, an obligation for breach of which 

it is liable in money damages to any person who claims that such breach proximately caused injury. 

 

SECTION 23.   DUTIES ARE DISCRETIONARY 

 

23.01 Subject to the limitations of due process and applicable requirements of State or federal laws, and 

notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance, whenever the words ñshallò or ñmustò are used in establishing 

a responsibility or duty of the District, its elected or appointed officers, employees or agents, it is the legislative intent 

that such words establish a discretionary responsibility or duty requiring the exercise of judgment and discretion. 

 

SECTION 24.  SEVERABILITY 

 

24.01 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be 

unconstitutional or invalid, such decisions shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 25.  PUBLICATION AND POSTING 

 

25.01 The Secretary of the Board is hereby directed to cause a summary of this Ordinance to be published at least 

five (5) days prior to the date of adoption hereof in a newspaper of general circulation printed and a copy of the full 

text must be posted at the District office at least five (5) days prior to the meeting.  The full text of this Ordinance 

must be published within ten (10) days after adoption with the names of the directors voting for and against the 

adoption and must likewise be posted at the District office. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



45 
 

 

 

SECTION 26.  EFFECTIVE DATE 

26.01 This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its adoption. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of April  2019. 

 

_____________________________ 

President of the Wrightwood 

Community Services District and  

of the Board of Directors thereof. 

  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

  

I, ____________________, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Wrightwood Community Services District, do 

hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance, being Ordinance No. 2019-02 was duly adopted by the Board of Directors 

of said District at a regular meeting of said Board held on April 2, 2019, and that it was so adopted by the following 

vote: 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT: 

  

ATTEST: ______________________________  

                  Secretary of the Wrightwood  

                 Community Services District and 

                of the Board of Directors thereof. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



46 
 

 

 

   

   ITEM 14 

   DISTRICT RESERVE 

  POLICY 

RESOLUTION 2019-01 
 

               DISCUSSION 

                      AND 

POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Staff Report 

 

In January, I brought to the Board the concept of establishing a Reserve Policy enabling the 

District to have further direction of Fiscal matters. Though there are no State mandates to do 

so, it is a good addition to our Fiscal control of Public Funds and community responsibility. 

The Board had a discussion and asked Mr. Kennedy to review the template presented last 

month and adjust where needed. 

The policy presented to the Board tonight reflects the Boardôs previous comments and 

concerns through legal review. Further Board review and comments tonight are encouraged. 

It is not necessary to establish separate institutional bank accounts as these reserves would 

be separate bookkeeping divisions that can only be utilized under Board approval and 

direction. 

 

Thank you 

Al Morrissette 

General Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



48  

  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-01 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR DISTRICT RESERVES 

WHEREAS, the Wrightwood Community Services District ("District") is a 
public agency organized and operating as a Community Services District pursuant to 
California Government Code Section 61000 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, the District is authorized by Government Code Section 61100 to 
acquire, construct, improve, maintain, and operate recreation facilities, including, but 
not limited to, parks and open space; to acquire, construct, improve, maintain, and 
operate street lighting and landscaping on public property, public rights-of-way, and 
public easements; to collect, transfer, and dispose of solid waste and refuse, and 
provide solid waste handling services, including, but not limited to, source reduction, 
recycling, and composting activities; and planning and engineering for the potential 
development of a regional wastewater treatment system should such be required by 
the Lahontan Regional Water Quality control Board; and  

WHEREAS, the District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors 
("Board") expressly authorized by Government Code Section 61040(a) to establish 
policies for the operation the District's functions and services; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is also expressly authorized by Government Code 
{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ смммн ǘƻ ŜǎǘŀōƭƛǎƘ ǊŜǎŜǊǾŜ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜǎΤ ŀƴŘ 

WHEREAS, the Board seeks to manage the DistrictΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜǎ ƛƴ ǎǳŎƘ ŀ ƳŀƴƴŜǊ 
that would result in the accumulation of funds to be utilized for a variety of District 
ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ǇǊƻǘŜŎǘ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ŎǳǎǘƻƳŜǊǎ ŀƴŘ ǘŀȄǇŀȅŜǊǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
impacts of catastrophic events and from fluctuations in District expenses; and 

 WHEREAS, this Board wishes to provide for the creation of certain unrestricted reserve 
ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘǎΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ǎŜǘ ŦƻǊǘƘ ƛƴ ǿǊƛǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ǊŜƎŀǊŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŀŎŎǳƳǳƭŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ 
reserves, the purposes for which they may be expended, and the levels which the 
District should strive to maintain. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Wrightwood Community Services District hereby provides for the deposit of revenue 
into certain restricted funds, the, creation of certain unrestricted reserve accounts, 
and the accumulation and administration of reserves in each, as follows: 

1. Unrestricted Reserves. 



49  

  

 

a) Reserve for Operations.   ! άwŜǎŜǊǾŜ ŦƻǊ hǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎέ ƛǎ ƘŜǊŜōȅ ŎǊŜŀǘŜŘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 
District's general account, to which the Board may appropriate unrestricted District 
revenues. Each such Reserve for Operations may be utilized to pay the cost of 
ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭ ǎȅǎǘem, including unanticipated costs of operation. 
The District shall endeavor to maintain in each Reserve, for Operations an amount 
sufficient to pay for six months of normal operation but not less than three months of 
normal operation. However, funds appropriated to any Reserve for Operations may 
be accessed at any time for any other District purpose, upon approval by the Board by 
a 4/5ths vote which shall contain direction as to repayment or balance. Funds 
appropriated to a Reserve for Operations may be invested in the same manner as 
other District surplus funds, and the earnings thereon shall be credited to the fund for 
which the reserve is in place. 

b) Reserve for Replacement.  ! άwŜǎŜǊǾŜ ŦƻǊ wŜǇƭŀŎŜƳŜƴǘǎέ ƛǎ ƘŜǊŜōȅ 
ŎǊŜŀǘŜŘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘ to which the Board may appropriate 
unrestricted District revenues.  Each Reserve for Replacements may be utilized 
ǘƻ ǊŜǇƭŀŎŜ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ǇƘȅǎƛŎŀƭ ǇƭŀƴǘΣ ŀǎ ƴŜŜŘŜŘΦ ¢ƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ ǎƘŀƭƭ ŜƴŘŜŀǾƻǊ ǘƻ 
maintain in each Reserve for Replacements an amount approximately equal to 
twenty-five percent (25%), not to exceed fifty percent (50%), of the total accumulated 
ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƻŦ ŘŜǇǊŜŎƛŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ǇƘȅǎƛŎŀƭ Ǉƭŀƴǘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘϥǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭ ǎȅǎǘŜƳ 
and as reflected in the annual audit of the District Presented to the Board each year, 
Ǉƭǳǎ млл҈ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƛƻǊ ȅŜŀǊΩǎ ŘŜǇǊŜŎƛŀǘƛƻƴΦ  IƻǿŜǾŜǊΣ ǘƘŜ ŦǳƴŘǎ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊiated to each 
Reserve for Replacements may be accessed at any time for any other District purpose, 
upon approval by the Board by a 4/5ths vote which shall contain direction as to 
repayment or balance.  Funds appropriated to a Reserve for Replacements may be 
invested in the same manner as other District surplus funds, and the earnings thereon 
shall be credited to the fund for which the reserve is in place. 

c) Reserve for Disaster Response.  ! άwŜǎŜǊǾŜ ŦƻǊ 5ƛǎŀǎǘŜǊ wŜǎǇƻƴǎŜέ ƛǎ ƘŜǊŜōȅ 
ŎǊŜŀǘŜŘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ general account to which the Board may appropriate 
unrestricted District revenues.  Each Reserve for Disaster Response may be utilized to 
procure such equipment and supplies, perform such repairs, employ such personnel, 
and take such other measures as may be necessary or appropriate in the event of a 
disaster or calamity requiring District response.  The District shall endeavor to 
maintain in each Reserve for Disaster Response an amount approximately equal to 
Ten Percent (10%) of the original cost of the DiǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ǇƘȅǎƛŎŀƭ Ǉƭŀƴǘ όǘƘŜ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ 
ŘŜǇǊŜŎƛŀōƭŜ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ǇŜǊ ǘƘŜ ŀƴƴǳŀƭ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ ŀǳŘƛǘύ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭ ǎȅǎǘŜƳ 
and as reflected in the annual audit of the District presented to the Board each year.  
However, the funds appropriated to each Reserve for Disaster Response may be 
accessed at any time for any other District purpose, upon approval by the Board by a 
4/5ths vote which shall contain direction as to repayment of balance. Funds 



50  

  

 

appropriated to a Reserve for Disaster Response may be invested in the same manner 
as other District surplus funds, and the earnings thereon shall be credited to the fund 
for which the reserve is in place. 

2. Additional Accounts. In addition to the unrestricted accounts identified above, 
the Board may approve the creation of such additional accounts, whether temporary 
or permanent (such as Capital Improvement Projects and system update/replacement 
projects identified in the BǳŘƎŜǘ ŀƴŘκƻǊ ŀǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ aŀǎǘŜǊ tƭŀƴύΣ ŀǎ 
the Board deems necessary or appropriate, by amendment to this resolution or by 
simple motion.  In such event, the Board will identify the purposes, for which such 
additional accounts are created, provide guidance as to the amount which the District 
should endeavor to maintain in each such account, and establish the limits and 
restrictions pertaining thereto. 

3. !ƴƴǳŀƭ wŜǇƻǊǘǎΦ  9ŀŎƘ ȅŜŀǊ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘΩǎ DŜƴŜǊŀƭ aŀƴŀƎŜǊ ǎƘŀƭƭ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜ ǘƘŜ 
Board with a report indicating the beginning and ending balance for each of the reserve 
funds or accounts created pursuant to this resolution and the purposes for which 
expenditures have been made therefrom and shall make recommendations to 
replenish or augment fund or account balances as appropriate. 

ADOPTED this 2nd day of April 2019 

 AYES:  
NOES: 

 ABSENT:  
            ABSTAIN:  

 President, Board of Directors  

Wrightwood Community Services District 
ATTEST: 

 

Secretary, Board of Directors 

Wrightwood Community Services District 
 

 



51  

  

 

 

                                 

 

ITEM 15 

PARK AND RECREATION 

EVENT COORDINATOR   

CONTRACTOR 

             DISCUSSION 

                    AND 

        POSSIBLE ACTION 

    
 

                      

 

 

 



52  

  

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

On March 25,2019, the Park and Recreation Event Coordinator Adhoc Committee asked me to create a public post 

asking interested parties for their resumes submitted for the contractor position.  

 

 The post is as follows: 
 

The Wrightwood Community Services District has an opening for the consultant position of Parks and Recreation 

Coordinator and Manager 

We are accepting Resumes until the position is filled 

Send your resume to al@wrightwoodcsd.org or mail to Wrightwood CSD, PO Box 218, Wrightwood, CA 92397 

Resumes will not be accepted through Facebook or other social media 

Position: Part-Time (10-15 hours per week depending on programs in progress) 

Pay Range: $17.00-$22.00 

Manager will oversee the Districtôs recreation programs including but not limited to: 

Recreational Programs, Sports Leagues and Events. He or she will have the knowledge of variating district rules and 

regulations for sports, games, arts and crafts; ability to maintain effective working relationships with children, teens 

and/or adults and the general public. 

In addition to the duties described, the coordinator will work directly with Facility Reservations, Contract Classes, 

Senior Programs, Community Excursions, Youth Programs, Youth and Adult Sports and Special Events. Must be able 

to work assigned schedules that include weekdays, evenings and/or holidays. 

Å Create new potential Parks and Recreation programs 

Å Survey community to gauge interest in future possible programs 

Å Research similar programs in other areas 

Å Coordinate with local groups to facilitate new programs 

Å Write comprehensive proposals for Boardôs review at monthly Regular Board Meetings to receive approval of 

proposed programs  

Å Work with staff to schedule programs 

Å Assist with organization and scheduling of frontline staff, sports activities, arts and crafts, games and play activities 

for youth and adults 

Å Assist in the supervision and development of sports leagues, playgrounds, community facilities, park areas and ensure 

the safety of participants through the proper use of equipment and the enforcement of rules and regulations 

Å Complete written reports including facility checks, attendance reports and incident and accident reports 

Å Monitor the operation and public activity during the hours of operation when needed 

Å Write grants to secure additional funding for future community programs 

Prerequisites 

Å Must have a High School Diploma 

Å Previous experience in developing Parks and Recreation programs 

Å Valid Class C California driver license and acceptable driving record throughout the course of employment and must 

carry auto insurance coverage 

Å Self-Starter who can take initiative 

Å Ability to accomplish tasks with little to no direction 

Å Above-average communications skills 

Å Writing skills 

Å Word processing skills  

Å Conflict resolution skills  

Å Be able to coordinate District events and activities, work in conjunction with paid staff, and coordinate and supervise 

volunteer staff 

Å Ability to work flexible hours 

There were 10 resumes submitted to me and I forward all to the committee for review, potential initial interview and 

then the committee would make their recommendation at this April 8 meeting. 



53  

  

 

 

 

   ITEM 16 

CAPITAL  

    IMPROVEMENT 

PLAN 
 

                DISCUSSION 

                       AND 

  POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 



54  

  

 

 

                                      CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) presented tonight is based upon evaluations, some personal and 

some from professionals. This is a thorough inspection and review of all the Districts infrastructure. This 

plan is a 10-year timeline that should be reviewed by the Board annually and the General Manager needs 

to inform the Board of any change due to an unknown or an emergency situation. 

 

Some items can be taken care of by our staff, while other items must go through the Request for Proposal 

RFP process that involves prevailing wage. Prevailing wages must be paid to all workers employed on a 

public works project when the public works project is over $1,000. If an awarding body elects to initiate 

and enforce a labor compliance program, that has been approved by the Director of the Department of 

Industrial Relations, for every public works project under the authority of the awarding body, prevailing 

wages are not required to be paid for any public works project of $25,000 or less when the project is for 

construction work, or for any public works project of $15,000 or less when the project is for alteration, 

demolition, repair, or maintenance work. I have not research labor compliance programs approved by the 

Director, but will do so in anticipation that we may be able to utilize this to our advantage, otherwise all 

projects $1000 or more are affected. 

 

(7) Exterior Security Camera System 

Service Shed  

$5,000 

  
 

Door  $1,000   

Roof  TBD  

Exterior Paint  $2,000   

Siding/Facia Repair 

Outside Restrooms 
 

$1,000 

  
 

Facia Repair/Replace  $1,000   

Vivian Null Park landscape  $1,500    

Crushed Granite Walkway  $500   

Drought Resistant/Native Plants 

Veterans Park Landscape  
$500    

Crushed Granite Walkway  $2,500   

Drought Resistant/Native Plants 

Hollis Steward Park  
$1,000    

Child Safe Wood Chips 

Community Building   

$2,500 

  
 

Flooring  TBD  

Dishwasher/Sanitizer  TBD  

Roof  $18,500   

Siding/Facia  TBD  

Front Exterior Door  $2,500   

Paint  $8,000   

Gutter/Recycle Water System 

Old Fire Station  

$3,000 

  
 

Cabin  $3,000   

 



55  

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



56  

  

 

 
 

 


